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Chairman's statement
TREHES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | would like
to report the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “Year”) to the shareholders. During the Year,
the Group’s turnover rose by 10% to approximately RMB2,423
million. Reported profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 7% to RMB230 million. Earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA") increased
by 5% to RMB483 million. Basic earnings per share for the Year
amounted to RMB29.67 cents (2018: RMB27.78 cents).

In appreciation of the shareholders’ support, the Board resolved
to declare a final dividend of HK4.8 cents per share for the Year,
which is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company. The
proposed final dividend and the interim dividend of HK1.7 cents
would bring the total dividend per share for the Year to HK6.5
cents (2018: HK5.6 cents).

The year 2019 was a year of turmoil. In the first half of the year,
with the continuing economic recovery in the US and Europe, the
global consumption of necessity goods and related businesses
maintained a growth momentum. China’s “supply-side structural
reform” and new environmental policies have contributed to
survival of the fittest in the supply chain and the thriving external
demand, all of which drove the Group’s surging businesses. In the
second half of the year, with the escalating international trade
conflicts, rising transaction risks and costs, the global supply chain
was faced with different degrees of challenges and disruptions. In
the environment full of risks and opportunities, the Group faced
with various challenges in its operation. Grasping the market
opportunities, the Group positioned itself as a reliable supplier of
“safe production, stable supply and superb quality” and continued
to gain trust and recognition from both new and old clients. Sales
quantity and product types considerably increased and all the three
main businesses recorded growth. At the same time, the strategic
development and construction of the new production bases in
Gulei and Changtai have made concrete progresses.
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Entering the new year of 2020, although unfortunately China
was impacted by the epidemic of the era, the novel coronavirus
pneumonia (COVID-19), at the end of January and has been
through a historic anti-epidemic spiral, the Group was fully
supported by the local government and both joint hand-in-hand
to triumph in the first phase of anti-epidemic work. The Group
has implemented and executed stringent anti-epidemic measures
regulated by the Chinese government, ensuring staff safety and
normal production. In early February, the Group successfully
commenced and completed on schedule the yearly maintenance
and technological advancement project in Haicang, and full
resumption of work has been commenced on 6 March 2020.
The raw materials and finished products pre-stored for the yearly
maintenance and technological advancement have guaranteed
stable supply to clients during the suspension of production in the
anti-epidemic work. While the epidemic is mitigated in mainland
China, the Group has immediately and successfully resumed work,
successfully providing a stable supply to its clients in China and
worldwide.

As a leading fine chemicals enterprise in the international market,
even though the operation of its two main businesses, “Scent &
Taste” and “Specialties” faced heightened challenges in China
due to the new environmental policies, the Group continued
to be the role model in green measures within the industry in
mainland China resulting from its business advancements and
strict operational standards over the years. The Group’s Haicang
production base was honoured with “Green Factory” by the
country’s Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and was
the only green chemicals production enterprise in Fujian Province
awarded with this certification. Meanwhile, the Group as a whole
was awarded by Hong Kong’s Green Council for the “Corporate
Green Governance Award” in 2019. All these honours commended
the Group’s dedication and efforts on green and safety measures
over the years, and recognized the Group’s corporate mission of
“Ecogreen and Ecofriendly” and “Commitment to bringing health
and well-being to the globe”. These achievements enhanced
the strong vitality of the Group’s sustainable development and
compliance to safety production, and at the same time offered
new opportunities for the enterprise’s future expansion of green
operation and financing.
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Chairman’s Statement
TRAEE

In its core business, the Group’s “Scent & Taste” business had
an outstanding performance during the Year. The petroleum-
based aroma chemical products recorded growth in both the
price and sales volume. The sales volume of the naturals-based
products also recorded growth despite its fluctuating price. The
total sales revenue in “Scent & Taste” business increased by
12% year-on-year, mainly attributable to the growth in global
demands, integrating global supply chain, and the continuous
supply shortage of various aroma chemical products in the first
half of 2019 due to serious safety incidents of overseas major
peers in 2018. In such operation background, the Group effectively
increased the composite production output through powerful
measures such as timely increase in production capacity, expansion
of outsourced production and technological advancements. The
Group will continue to advance its “Scent & Taste” business with
stringent quality control and guaranteed supply, striving to be
the leading “Scent & Taste” total solutions supplier in the global
market.

In its “Naturals” business, the Group produces three major
categories of products, namely natural food ingredients, natural
essential oil, and natural extracts. During the Year, the three sub-
business segments as a whole recorded steady growth of 3% in
revenue. Among them, the sales of seafood extract (fresh oysters)
products recorded over 70% growth and the Group has become
the largest supplier to China’s largest soy sauce manufacturing
enterprise. Many of the products within the categories of natural
food ingredients and natural extracts also fall into the “Taste”
business, which can tailored-made clients’ various demand on
“Taste” products with differentiated solutions, together with the
“Taste” products in the Group's synthetic scent product category.
Upon completion of Phase Il upgrade of Changtai production
base in 2020, the “Naturals” business will be equipped with
new production facilities and capacity. The Phase Il Changtai
production base will replace the existing Xinglin Plant and will
be upgraded to be a new plant of larger scale to meet the food
production standards of the “SC" certificate, and thus providing
key ingredients of taste and nutrition to frozen food, fast food and
pet nutrition food industries. During the Year, the upgrade project
of Changtai has been successfully planned and has started to be
implemented. The natural essential oil production line was officially
put into operation on 5 March 2020, while the food ingredient
production will commence operation in the third quarter of 2020.
The sales of natural extracts will be multiplied in the next three
years after putting the new production lines into operation.
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In its “Specialties” business, the Group has drawn a new blueprint
for the business development in Gulei Chemical Industrial Park.
Gulei, as the Group’s largest business project and value investment,
will be constructed and put into operation in different phases. The
Group has planned to invest RMB1.5 billion in Phase | Gulei. As
at the end of 2019, construction of the storage tanks and main
facilities have been completed and the essential equipment in the
main units has been properly installed. Installation of all equipment
is planned to be completed in the second quarter of 2020, and
trial production is planned to start in the third quarter of the year.
Hydrogenated hydrocarbon resin, which is highly favored in the
market, will be produced in Phase | to provide key components to
the newly emerging daily consumption necessities.

The Group carried out its major strategic planning in Gulei
Chemical Industrial Park to adapt itself to the upcoming changes
in the global economy, and to meet China’s new environmental
policies. The industrial park will also enable the Group to fully
capitalize on the integrated supply chain for oil refinery and
petrochemical business and the technological advancement, so that
it can better meet the changes in the industries demand. It will do
so by optimising the product mix of aroma chemicals and functional
materials for international and domestic markets, thus achieving
synergy between the supply chains for natural and petroleum-
based resources. Among the different planned phases, Phase |
Gulei will mainly focus on the production of the new functional
materials product — hydrogenated hydrocarbon resin. Meanwhile,
several production facilities will be built to produce new functional
chemicals and new product portfolio under “Scent & Taste”. The
Group will thereby achieve higher level of synergies in its business
resources and technologies, for building and actualizing the multi-
industries development in Gulei. Gulei production base will become
the Group’s core production base that drives its future robust
business development and rapid business expansion. Although
Phase | Gulei will not be able to completely meet the planned
progress to begin operation on 1 June 2020, with the sprint in the
last quarter of 2019, it is with good foundation to be completed
and put into operation for hydrogenated hydrocarbon resin in the
third quarter of 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement
TRAEE

2020 is a year of grand challenges globally. Global economy and
society are now facing huge disruptions. Apart from the escalating
China-US trade conflicts and geopolitical frictions, the unexpected
global outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia epidemic in
the beginning of the year has caused immense setbacks for the
lives and properties in many countries worldwide. It has paused
global production and supply on a large scale, leading to a sharp
devaluation in various assets and the financial market turmoil,
making it a catastrophe to human. Due to the serious impact
brought about by the epidemic, it is expected that the global
operating environment in 2020 will be considerably harsh. For
corporate and business owners, it will be a huge challenge for them
to overcome the disruptions caused by the epidemic. Fortunately,
governments of various countries has been proactively putting
huge resources and financial support to combat the epidemic,
help the people and stimulate the economy in order to prevent
or mitigate economic depression globally. The Group has also
been proactively dedicating itself to the anti-epidemic work and
resumption of production, so as to overcome the difficulties and
to realise the Group's plans to resuming work and production and
supplying to clients in the fastest and most precise way.

The Group’s major production bases and operation are in
Fujian Province, China. Currently, China is the fastest country
overcoming the epidemic, and Fujian Province is a region with
less severe impacts. Led by the management team and with the
effort of all members, the Group has successfully commenced and
completed on schedule the yearly maintenance and technological
advancement for expanded production in Haicang Plant on 10
February 2020 and resumption of work has been commenced
on 6 March 2020. Its production, construction and research and
development have basically been resumed to the level before the
epidemic. The Group’s products are mainly key components to daily
necessities, including washing agents, disinfectants, deodorants,
food and personal hygiene products, which are in the elementary
industry of anti-epidemic work. Amid the epidemic, demands for
products of washing agents and disinfectants indeed showed a
rising trend, and thus all of the Group’s downstream clients of
daily chemicals remained to have comprehensive production and
operation as well as robust demands on raw materials. The Group
will make the greatest effort to enhance its safety and green
management as well as its production capacity and efficiency of
core procedures, while integrating the anti-epidemic work. In a
turbulent operating environment, the Group turning crisis into
opportunity, by providing key support to the global anti-epidemic
work, restoration of industry businesses and restructuring of supply
chain with a safe, reliable and persistent production.
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With the support of banks and shareholders, the Group will
prudently speed up the construction and operation schedule of
Gulei and Changtai. The functional materials project of Phase |
Gulei has been steadily developing and the construction work has
been fully completed. Construction of plants and installation of
equipment have been substantially completed at the end of 2019;
and the electromechanical facilities are planned to be installed
in the second quarter of 2020. Trial productions are expected to
commence in the third quarter of 2020. It is planned to introduce
the high-end hydrogenated hydrocarbon resin products that are
greatly welcomed by the market. Prioritising the market in China,
such products will offer solutions for replacing the foreign imports
for industries in hygiene materials, medical protection, automotive
parts, electronic products and housecare products as well as newly
emerging industries like new energy and 5G new raw materials.
The designed production capacity of functional materials in
Phase | Gulei is 30,000 tonnes, with production automation and
safety management systems to achieve large scale production.
Meanwhile, Phase | plants have left development space for the
expansion of production to 60,000 tonnes in the next stage. In
second stage of Phase | in Gulei, the Group will build a national
level engineering and technology centre, to greatly enhance
the Group’s ability and speed in research and development on
industrialization technologies. Meanwhile, the Group will build
several sets of flexible multi-functional units in order to introduce
more hot-selling functional chemicals and synthetic aroma
chemicals to the market. Leveraging on the synergies of C5C9
resources and with the production of hydrogenated hydrocarbon
resin products, they will together greatly facilitate the synergies and
development of the Group’s synthetic aroma chemical products.

Regarding the transformation and restructuring, and the
technological advancements of Phase Il in Changtai, the production
lines for natural essential oil and oil extracts have been completed
in late February 2020, and have commenced operation on 5 March.
It is expected to complete the construction and installation of the
three production lines in August 2020 that allows the Group to
commence trial productions in the third quarter of the year. The
completion of Phase Il in Changtai will utterly upgrade the Group’s
production setup in its food ingredients business, increasing the
number of product portfolio of food products, enhancing the
product quality and production capacity as a whole, so as to create
the conditions for robust sales revenue growth.
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Chairman’s Statement
TRAEE

Facing the global spread of the epidemic and a turbulent market
environment as well as the deeply-rooted restructural changes in
the global industry, the Group will continue to implement and
realise the Group’s strategy of “New EcoGreen” with perseverance,
determination and confidence under prudent attitude and
strenuous effort.

The Group will facilitate global procurement of raw materials to
ensure a stable supply and balanced price in its main naturals-based
and petroleum-based raw materials. The Group will strengthen
its presence in mainland China, accelerating the synergetic
development of functional chemicals and functional materials.
Leveraging on its new production capacity and innovative know-
how as well as proactive cost management, the Group will make
effort to introduce more hot-selling products to the market and
increase its main products market share. Meanwhile, with regard
to the impacts brought about by the epidemic and the resulting
liquidity condition of its clients, the Group will reassess the credit
status of every client and tighten the clients’ credit management
control, thereby strengthening the corporate financial liquidity in
order to embrace the market challenges with a stable financial
condition. The Group will continue to strengthen environmental
and safety compliance in its operations, which will elevate the
Group’s green chemical production and sustainable operation
to a new level, further comprehensively enhancing the green
content from green technology to green manufacturing and green
financing.

The Group will make effort to provide outstanding client services,
highly efficient operation, persistent technological advancement,
stringent cost management and strengthened application of
information technologies, to overcome the difficulties brought
about by the epidemic, and to explore opportunities and vigorously
facilitate rapid business growth, enhancing EcoGreen’s core
competitiveness and increasing both the return to shareholders and
the return on capital.
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The Group will remain committed to the noble mission of
“Commitment to bringing health and well-being to the globe”
and continue to pursue the business vision of “Ecogreen and
Ecofriendly”. “Quest for merits and Strives to excel.” This will also
help the Group attain its goal and persistent growth in financial
results and business performance.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all our shareholders, customers, suppliers, banks
and staff members for their trust and unwavering support, which
have been the crucial elements of and motivation for the Group's
success. | would also like to extend my sincere thanks to all the
directors of the Company and the Group'’s advisors for their great
support and valuable advice. And | wish everyone health and safety.

Yang Yirong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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(All amounts in RMB million unless otherwise stated)

Revenue
Gross profit

Operating profit
EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA®

Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
— Reported profit for the year
— Non-GAAP underlying profit

for the year

Basic earnings per share
(RMB cents)

— Based on reported profit
for the year

— Based on non-GAAP underlying
profit for the yearti

Final dividend per share
(HK cents)

Net asset value per share (RMB)

WA

E7

mERA

RIMBRAE - BiE -
FERBHART

RABRKARFE - BE -

TERBHEATRRO
RABRFEAFENE

— FERRE A
—FAREHRAZ
FEEAF O
BREFBR(ARED)
—UEERENBFE

—LOERREFRAIZ

FEEARFEAED

BRARYRE (GEEA)

BREEFE(ARE)

Notes:

(i) Details of the adjusted EBITDA is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(i) Non-GAAP financial measures were adopted in order to have more
clearly illustration of the financial results by excluding the impact of
net foreign exchange loss of RMB26.86 million (2018: RMB69.48

million) on financing activities.

These unaudited non-GAAP financial measures should be considered
in addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the Company’s
financial performance prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS"). Please see “Non-GAAP

Financial Measures” as set out on page 20 for details.
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(All amounts in RMB million unless otherwise stated)
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/2019 Major Awards

2019 F F 217

J// EcoGreen's wholly-owned subsidiary honoured with “Green Factory” title by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology on its fourth List of Green Manufacturers in China, the only one chemical company in
Fujian Province awarded with such a title

FREEMBARINBER TEMEMCHEMNFEORFECRERES - KE [ TRIMEN - £REEN - EMHE—
—HESHAREN(ILE

.

GNEEN COUNGL e et
assaw LT r TR

HONG KONG GREEN AWARDS 2019 /// EcoGreen was honored with “2019 Golden
1 PERTlFlCATErSLﬁ}ﬁﬁEﬁ Hong Kong Stocks — Best Small & Mid-Cap

T Company Award” at the Fourth Golden Hong
Environmental Momitoring Kong Stocks Annual Awards Ceremony
‘ f " oA B0 E [ S5 AR ) O AR SRR b

[&ER ) HEAR]

—

J/// EcoGreen honored with “Hong Kong Green Awards
2019 — Corporate Green Governance Award:
Environmental Monitoring and Reporting”

HIGERE [ HEZEDLEAR2019 - bESEERE

REEA NS

/// EcoGreen was honored with the ListCo Excellence Award 2019

hia R ET A RIR 282019
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Management Discussion and Analysis /

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue
increased by 10% to approximately RMB2.42 billion. Growth in
sales revenue is primarily attributed to the surge in selling price of
the Group's products, together with the gentle increase of the sales
volume during the year.

()

(ii)

Scent & Taste

“Scent & Taste” continued to be the Group's core product
segment, and constituted a stable and major income
source for the Group during the year under review. As key
ingredients used in many daily consumer goods, “Scent and
Taste” products witnessed rising market demand with a
combined positive effect of its diversified applications and
the development in the emerging markets.

During the year under review, the Group has launched and
sold more than 100 types of “Scent” products to customers
around the world and its revenue has recorded a 11% surge
of revenue in last year. As the Group further expand its
market share in the field of fragrance, important customers
of the industry became more relied on the Company’s
integrated supply chain. In addition, the revenue of “Taste”
products through provision of solutions increased by 54%
over the last year. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the revenue from the “Scent and Taste” sector increased
by 12% to RMB1,649 million (2018: RMB1,471 million) and
accounted for 68% of the Group’s overall revenue (2018:
67%).

Naturals

In respect of the “Naturals” products, apart from existing
natural pharmaceutical raw materials, the Group has been
actively engaged in the development of food additives
business for the production of food ingredients, fast food,
frozen food and pet nutrition food, which is produced with
purification and bioconversion technologies from natural
produces. Naturals mainly include seafood, meat and
mushroom extracts.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total revenue
from “Natural” products was RMB456 million (2018:
RMB445 million), representing an increase of 3% from last
year and accounting for 19% of the Group’s sales volume
(2018: 20%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
E%FFI—JLHFFH& Tﬁ

RBVBHUB (continued)

(iii) Specialties and Others

Besides the chiral pharmaceuticals and specialty chemicals,
the Group also applies similar advanced technologies of
synthesis to produce agrochemical “Specialties” chemicals,
which will be turned into a kind of eco-pesticide later.
In terms of functional chemicals in “Others” segment,
disinfectant chemicals maintained a steady stream of
business; an expansion to include electronic chemicals is
also in the works. Following the Group’s development in the
supply chain of petroleum-based products, it is believed that
the functional chemicals business will usher in a period of
growth.

During the year under review, revenue of products in this
category rose up by 12% to RMB317 million (2018: RMB283
million) and accounting for 13% (2018: 13%) of the
Group’s sales volume.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit decreased
by 2% to RMB520 million. Gross profit margin decreased from
24.2% in 2018 to 21.5% in 2019. By the products category, the
gross profit margin of “Scent and Taste” decreased from 27.0% in
2018 t0 22.4% in 2019, while "Naturals” stayed at 17.7% in 2018
and 17.6% this year. The profit margin of “Specialties and Others”
increased from 20.0% in 2018 to 22.0% in 2019.

Operating Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2019, selling and marketing
expenses accounted for 1.5% of the Group’s turnover (2018:
1.4%) whereas the administrative expenses accounted for 4.5% of
turnover (2018: 4.3%). Under the Group's effective cost-cutting
measures, the operating expenses remained stable in these two
years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other income and (losses)/gains, net

During the year, the depreciation of the Renminbi caused the
Group to record a net exchange gain of RMB1.97 million (2018:
RMB7.91 million) at operation and the Group restructured part of a
plant in Changtai production base resulting in written-off of certain
property, plant and equipment amounting to RMB11.59 million.
Overall, there was other income and net losses of RMB7.88 million
in this year (2018: other income and net gains of RMB7.20 million).

Net finance expenses

As a significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is denominated
in United States Dollar (“USD") and Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"),
the fluctuation of the RMB during the year has led to the exchange
loss of RMB26.86 million (2018: RMB69.48 million) mainly arising
from bank borrowings denominated in foreign currency. During the
year, borrowing costs attributable to the construction of Gulei and
Changtai plants was capitialised. As the amount of construction in
progress throughout this year was at a higher level than last year,
the amount of interest capitalised was increased to RMB44.76
million (2018: RMB13.84 million). On the other hand, the higher
borrowing rates in this year have resulted in an increase in interest
expense to RMB101.6 million (2018: RMB88.1 million). As a whole,
there was a decrease of net finance expenses to RMB42.3 million
(2018: RMB100 million).

Taxation

Tax expense of the Group for 2019 was RMB97.4 million (2018:
RMB101.6 million). Effective tax rate of the Group is 29.8% (2018:
32.1%).

Profit for the Year

Reported profit attributable to shareholders in 2019 was RMB230
million, representing an increase of 7% as compared to a
profit of RMB215 million in 2018. Basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB29.67 cents (2018: RMB27.78 cents). The
EBITDA amounted to RMB483 million as compared to RMB462
million in 2018, representing an increase of 5%.

Non-GAAP underlying profit in 2019 was RMB257 million,
representing an decrease of 10% as compared to the non-GAAP
underlying profit of RMB285 million in 2018. Basic earnings per
share based on Non-GAAP underlying profit for the year was
approximately RMB33.13 cents (2018: RMB36.74 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN® MO

NOn-GAAP Financial Measures

To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared
in accordance with HKFRS, non-GAAP underlying profit for the
year have been presented in this announcement. The Company’s
management believes that the non-GAAP financial measures
provide investors with more clear view on the Group’s financial
results, and with useful supplementary information to assess the
performance of the Group’s strategic operations by excluding
net foreign exchange loss of RMB26.86 million (2018: RMB69.48
million) on financing activities.

Nevertheless, the use of non-GAAP financial measures has
limitations as an analytical tool. It should be considered in addition
to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the Company’s financial
performance prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

During the year under review, the Group’s primary source of
funding mainly included the cash generated from financing
activities and internal resources. For the year ended 31 December
2019, net cash generated from operating activities amounted to
RMB237 million (2018: RMB147 million of net cash used). The
Group had net cash used in investing activities of RMB301 million
(2018: RMB1,257 million). During the year under review, the
net cash inflow generated from financing activities amounted to
RMB123 million (2018: RMB414 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the inventories’, trade receivables’ and
trade payables’ average turnover days were 42 days, 146 days and
53 days (2018: 48 days, 123 days and 46 days), respectively.

The Group's financial position remains very solid and healthy during
the year under review. As at 31 December 2019, the total equity
of the Group was RMB2.30 billion (2018: RMB2.10 billion). The net
current assets and the current ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2019 were approximately RMB1,332 million (2018: RMB1,740
million) and 1.80 (2018: 2.4), respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

(continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings and bills
payable of approximately RMB1,898 million and RMB250 million
(2018: RMB1,716 million and RMB174 million), respectively.
Among the Group’s borrowing, outstanding short-term borrowings
amounted to RMB1,351 million (2018: RMB972 million). As at 31
December 2019, the Group’s ratio of borrowings to total equity,
was approximately 83% (2018: 82%) and the Group’s net debt,
being pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents less borrowings and bills payable amounted to
RMB590 million (2018: RMB296 million).

With its available bank credit facilities and its existing cash
resources, the Group has very strong liquidity and sufficient
financial resources to meet its commitments, working capital
requirements and future investments for expansion.

Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates

Due to the combined factors that the sales and the purchases of
raw materials of the Group are mainly denominated in USD and
RMB, that the major production base is in China, that the Group's
borrowings are primarily in USD, RMB and HKD, and that the
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, exchange
risks derived from the conversion from USD or HKD to RMB are
involved. The Group will review its current hedging policy for
foreign exchange in due course to further reduce foreign exchange
risks in the short-to-long-term.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings of approximately
RMB503 million, RMB678 million and RMB717 million (2018:
RMB466 million, RMB768 million and RMB482 million) were
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD respectively.

Interest is mainly charged on a floating rate basis. It is expected
that USD interest rates will be decreasing in 2020. The Group will
continue to monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the market and
take appropriate actions to minimize the interest rate risk.
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slograpnical Detalls of irectors and senior Management

sEhaREEAERE

Executive Directors

Mr. YANG Yirong

Chairman and President, Chairman of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yang, aged 58, is the founder of the Group. He is responsible
for strategic planning and formulation of overall corporate
development policy for the Group. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor's
degree in science, majoring in chemistry from Huagiao University in
1982. Prior to founding the Group in 1994, Mr. Yang has extensive
experience in the fine chemical manufacturing and trading and
has more than 26 years of experience in natural organic chemistry
research.

Mr. GONG Xionghui

Senior Vice President — Functional Materials Division

Mr. Gong, aged 56, is responsible for project construction and
strategic investment development. Mr. Gong holds a Master’s
degree in chemical engineering from Xiamen University and has
accumulated over 32 years of experience in fine chemicals industry
and qualified as an ISO 9000 auditor in the PRC in 1998. He joined
the Group in September 1999.

Ms. LU Jiahua

Senior Vice President — Group Financial Control, Member of
Remuneration Committee

Ms. Lu, aged 53, oversees the finance and accounting and human
resources functions for the Group in the PRC. She has over
30 years of experience in accounting, financial management,
administration management and internal auditing in a number of
pharmaceutical and fine chemical manufacturing enterprises. Ms.
Lu holds a Bachelor’s degree and a Master’s degree in economics
and corporate management from Xiamen University. She joined the
Group in April 2002.

Mr. LIN Zhigang

Senior Vice President — Group’s Aroma Chemicals Business

Mr. Lin, aged 49, is responsible for the management of the Group’s
operation in aroma chemicals business. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree of economics obtained from Xiamen University. Prior to
joining the Group in June 1996, he worked in a foreign investment
enterprise and has concrete experience in sales and marketing
management, business development and production management.
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Blographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXBCU“VB DirBC[[JrS (continued)

Dr. LIN David Ying Tsung

Senior Vice President — Engineering Project Management and Gulei
Division

Dr. Lin, aged 68, joined the Group as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 June 2016. After his redesignation as
an executive Director on 28 March 2018, he is responsible for
the management of the construction of the Gulei project and
the operation and management of the Gulei Industrial Hub in
the future. He obtained the Doctor of Chemical Engineering
from the University of Illinois, USA. He has accumulated over
38 years of experience in the chemical industry, with extensive
experience in research and development, business development,
sales and management of chemical-related projects. He has been
working in Honeywell UOP, Formosa Plastics, Dragon Aromatics
and HaiShunde Special Oil Co, and is responsible for large-
scale chemical project management and the development and
commercialization of petrochemical technology. He has awarded
numerous honors and awards at Honeywell UOP and was awarded
as a leading expert in Zhangzhou's outstanding Taiwanese business
leaders.

Mr. HAN Huan Guang

Senior Vice President — Group Strategic Investments and Capital
Markets, Member of Remuneration Committee, Member of
Nomination Committee

Mr. Han, aged 58, responsible for strategic investments, capital
markets and investor relations. He graduated from Zhongshan
University (1 1L1AXZ) with a Bachelor’s degree in biochemistry in
1982 and obtained his Master’s degree in Business Administration
from University of Technology, Sydney, Australia in 1993. He
has over 31 years’ experience in corporate finance, merger and
acquisition, infrastructure and new technology developments,
management of listed and non-listed companies in the PRC
and overseas. Over the years, he has been a Director, and
then Managing Director in China Everbright Medicine Co.
Ltd. (a subsidiary of China Everbright Holdings Group), Livzon
Pharmaceutical Group Inc. and in other senior management
positions in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland companies.
He has been appointed as a Councilor of the China Society of
Biotechnology, and also member of some professional associations
in the region. Mr. Han joined the Group in September 2005 as a
non-executive Director, and became an executive Director from
May 2006.

EENEREEANERE

HMITEE (@)

MERE L
BREEH - THREAEERLEEE

MIBE - 685% 0 M2016F6 108 MAKEE
BEEBIIENTES - MBELHR2018F3 728
HHRATANTESR  DELEEEHEMER
MAREEEEEMNEEEE - KB AE
EFAZERSLLETREEL  REBIB3SE
ZAETIT#ER  AELECIHECZERE
B R EBHATEEELR MET B
BNEREFEBUOP - Formosa Plastics * fEBEF
REBIEEREARCTI v EEERUNREE
AEIBERMzABEREAELZTIE - BER
EEEMUOPEZ KA TLEI L BT - I L5
AEMNGELEmETESEHNEEAS -

BEOLRL
BRBIEH - FERBEREREARTS - 3B
ZEEKE  1BEZBEHE

A - 585k BRERIKKRE EAMSREK
BEBR -BEERMIQ2FERLARBRE
REEWEESZ L - WR1993FEEUR A FIE
ERBIARBIEmERELTSMN - BTRAEK
HINCERE - MR EEFHEMAR -
EHE KA ETRIEETARIERTEESR
BTFEELR  BEEXNFBEEREENEA
AlChina Everbright Medicine Co. Ltd.  BBIKE
BEETREERESHLE  TERES -
EMENMFEARETEMASAEERRS - I
CEPHEYIRESZAER/ESE - BAAR
NZEZXEHB 28 - ®N2005F9 A MEA
REBEEREMITESE - 200655 BEE
RPITESE -

Annual Report 2019 /) —Z — hEF5H 23



Blographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENAREREANERE
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Independent Non-executive Directors ('INED(S))

Mr. YAU Fook Chuen

Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of Remuneration
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yau, aged 62, is a practising accountant and has over 30 years
of experience in public accountancy practice which covers company
secretarial service, accountancy, auditing and taxation. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Yau is currently the proprietor of Yau & Wong, Certified Public
Accountants in Hong Kong. He was appointed as an INED in
February 2004.

Professor XIANG Ming

Member of Audit Committee, Member of Remuneration
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Professor Xiang, 57 years old, is a professor at the Polymer Research
Institute of Sichuan University. He has long been engaged in the
research and development of polymer materials. Professor Xiang
has more than 31 years of experience in technical research and
development services for the industrial sector. He is familiar with
managing the research and development on technology and
product for Chinese companies. He obtained the certificate of the
independent director of the PRC in 2006. Professor Xiang was
appointed as an independent director for Yunnan Yuntianhua Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600096) as the role of a technical expert from 2006 to 2012. He
was appointed as an INED in April 2019.

Mr. WONG Yik Chung, John

Chairman of Remuneration Committee, Member of Audit
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 53, among being the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, was also served as an Independent
Non-executive Director of a few companies listed in Hong Kong
and oversea stock exchanges. He is a professional accountant by
training with more than 27 years of experience in auditing and
corporate finance work, with extensive exposure to the business
enterprise in the PRC. He was admitted as a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants in February
1992 and as an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in April 1997. He also obtained a PRC
Certificate of Independent Directorship in 2002. He was appointed
as an INED in February 2004.
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Blographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. LIU Yaoquan, Gary

Innovative Technology Director

Dr. Liu, aged 56, joined the Group in March 2014. He is responsible
for the technology and innovation of the Group. Dr. Liu obtained
the Master’s degree in chemistry from the Chinese Academy
of Science, Doctoral degree in chemistry from the University of
Alberta, Canada and Postdoctoral research fellow of University
of California, United States of America. He has been engaged
in research in terpene chemicals and aroma chemicals as well as
organic synthesis of natural alkaloids in Guangzhou Chemistry
Research Institutes of Chinese Academy of Sciences and University
of Hanover, Germany. Dr. Liu was the Senior Scientist of KOSAN
Biosciences, Inc. and the Chemistry Director of Evolva, United
States of America.

Mr. YAN Da Yi, David

General Manager — Marketing and Sales of Aroma Chemicals

Mr. Yan, aged 59, General Manager of the Marketing and Sales
of Aroma Chemicals, Mr. Yan holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering. Mr. Yan has 36 years work experience in Canada,
Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group in May 2004, he
worked for eight years in a well-known software company in Hong
Kong, for positions in marketing, sales, servicing and administrative
departments.

Mr. XIAO Liyuan

Aroma Chemicals Operations Manager

Mr. Xiao, aged 56, Director of Aroma Chemicals Operations. Before
joining the Group in February 2001, he was the deputy manager
in a large chemical enterprise. Mr. Xiao has more than 37 years
experience of production management.

Mr. TU Hongbin

Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager

Mr. Tu, aged 52, Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager, who received a
Ph.D degree in 1995 from Beijing Institute of Technology. After the
postdoctoral research experience with Professor Alan.R.Katritzky
at University of Florida of USA (2001-2004), he joined Ecogreen
in May 2005. He has more than 15 years experience in organic
synthesis and methodology including 3 years preparation and
production of Heterocyclic compounds.

Mr. LAM Kwok Kin

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Lam, aged 46, is the financial controller and company secretary
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accountancy
and is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in October 2003,
he worked with an international accounting firm for 7 years and
was the financial controller and company secretary of a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, budgeting and company secretarial work.
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The Board acknowledges the importance of and benefit from good
corporate governance practices and is committed to improving
the corporate governance practices in order to enhance better
transparency and to ensure that business activities and decision
making processes are regulated in a proper manner to safeguard
the interests of shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has complied with the Code Provisions under and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.5.1.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices and explains deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCGE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of: (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Company’s Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring codes
of conduct and compliance manuals (if any) applicable to the
Company’s employees and Directors; and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and company secretary of the Company in compliance
with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. Further, the Board
reviewed and monitored the Group’s policies and practices and
noted that the Group had complied with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements in all material respects during the year
under review. The Board also reviewed the employees’ manual
applicable to the employees of the Company. Lastly, the Board has
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
disclosure of this Corporate Governance Report.
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THE BOARD
Respansinilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Group in a responsible and effective manner. The Board provides
leadership and formulates strategic policies and plans of the Group
with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Group,
including: objectives and overall strategies of the Group; annual
budgets and financial matters; equity related transactions such as
issue of shares/options and repurchase of shares; dividend; raising of
capital loan; determination of major business strategy; merger and
acquisition; major investment; annual financial budget in turnover,
profitability and capital expenditure; review and approval of financial
performance and announcement; and matters as required by laws
and ordinance.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and the
various Committees with adequate information in a timely manner
to enable the members to make informed decisions. Each Director
has separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management to acquire more information than is volunteered
by management and to make further enquiries if necessary. The
functions delegated to management are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

Gomposition and role

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of nine
members including six executive Directors, and three INEDs, as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Compaosition and role (continued)

INEDs

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Professor Xiang Ming (appointed on 9 April 2019)
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

The INEDs together have substantial experience in fields of
auditing, legal matters, business, accounting, corporate internal
control and regulatory affairs. The Board’s composition covers a
balance of expertise, skills and industry experience so as to bring
in valuable contributions and advices for the development of the
Group'’s business. Through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on Board committees, all INEDs make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Group.

The INEDs also serve the important function of ensuring and
monitoring the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. One INED possesses appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The INEDs are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s
corporate communications.

During the period from 28 March 2018 to 9 April 2019, the Board
cannot met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs. Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1),
3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and CG Code Provision
A.5.1, (i) the Board is required to have at least three INEDs; (ii) the
Board is required to have INEDs representing at least one third of
the Board; (iii) the audit committee must comprise a minimum of
three members, at least one of whom is an INED with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise; (iv) the remuneration committee must
comprise by a majority of INEDs and (v) the nomination committee
must comprise by a majority of INEDs.

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung (“Dr. Lin") was redesignated as executive
Director on 28 March 2018. On the same date, he was resigned as
an INED, and a member of each of the remuneration committee,
the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. The Company has not appointed a suitable candidate to
fill the vacancy till 9 April 2019.
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THE BUARD (CONTINUED)

Compaosition and rale (continued)

Since the Company was not able to identify suitable candidate
to take up the vacancy left by Dr. Lin, the Company was not in
compliance with the requirements prescribed under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and CG Code Provision
A.5.1 during the period from 28 March 2018 to 9 April 2019.

The Board considers that each INED is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Code Provision
A.4.3, any further appointment of INED serving more than nine
years should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
the shareholders of the Company. Notwithstanding that Mr. Yau
Fook Chuen (“Mr. Yau”) and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (“Mr
Wong”) have served as INEDs of the Company for more than
nine years, (i) the Board has assessed and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence based on the requirement set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and affirmed that Mr. Yau and Mr.
Wong remain independent; (i) the Nomination Committee of the
Company has assessed and is satisfied of the independence of Mr.
Yau and Mr. Wong; and (iii) the Board considers that Mr. Yau and
Mr. Wong remain independent of management and free of any
relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of
his independent judgement. Notwithstanding the length of their
service, the Company believes that their valuable knowledge and
experience in the Group’s business will continue to benefit the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up
and approving the agenda for each board meeting in consultation
with all directors. Notices of regular board meetings are served to
all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings while reasonable
notice is generally given for other Board meetings and the directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect of regular
board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within reasonable
time before the meeting. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.
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THE BUARD (CONTINUED)
BUHFU mBBtlﬂgS (continued)

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and
all directors have access to board papers and related materials, and
are provided with adequate information in a timely manner, which
enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed
before it.

A total of 4 board meetings were held during the year. The

BEEE e

E
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EEONEERLE R RSB ERgEMT
ZHEZMERT  FBEFHERENESS
NHERAEAER RERFREIREEHER - &
ESGRORKRFENEL A RIENHE -

AHBITNUAEESD:E - H{E2019F12

FR
individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of A3MBILEE SEETRNEZLHE  HWE
the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee Ee@e@mhEBERLZE @R 2 HELSEET ¢
during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE/ETeERE
Full
Board Nomination  Remuneration Audit
General meetings Committee Committee Committee
meeting  2EAEHE meeting meetings meetings
Name of Director EdE Kexe cEzeelE RiZEees FHWZEees EiZEeeE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS YES
Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman) BREEE(LE) 17 4/4 17 - -
Mr. Gong Xionghui BiEREE 11 414 - - -
Ms. Lu Jiahua BRELT 1 4/4 - [l -
Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung HERET N 44 - - -
Mr. Han Huan Guang 0 ik 10 44 111 0 -
Mr. Lin Zhigang v e i 414 - - -
INEDs BUFHTES
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERERE n 4/4 1" 1 33
Professor Xiang Ming * B i 33 i i 33
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HERLE 10 414 10 10 33
Notes: s -

(i) Professor Xiang Ming was appointed on 9 April 2019.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction which
involves a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have
a material interest.
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THE BUARD (CONTINUED)
Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. There are also arrangements in place for
providing continuing briefing and professional development to
Directors whenever necessary.

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory
requirements, business activities and development of the Company
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Through regular
Board meetings and emails, all Directors are kept abreast of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
During the year, the Directors have attended various in-house
briefings and internal or external seminars/trainings, and have
read internal or external newsletters, updates and other reading
materials covering topics such as business of the Company,
corporate governance, industry knowledge, regulatory updates,
finance and management.

Appointment, rotation and re-glection of Directors

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all newly
appointed Directors of the Company shall hold office until the next
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Every
Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at
the AGM. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 108(A) of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Gong Xionghui, Mr. Han Huan Guang and
Mr. Lin Zhigang will retire as Directors by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the AGM.

Term of appointment of INEDS

All INEDs were appointed for an initial term of not more than one
year and will be renewable automatically for successive term of
one year until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party or the other. All INEDs are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three years and are subject to
reelection.
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THE BUARD (CONTINUED)

Segregation of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ")

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the Code Provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should be
separate and would not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company does not presently have any officer with the title
CEO. At present, Mr. Yang Yirong, being the Chairman and
the President of the Company, is responsible for the strategic
planning, formulation of overall corporate development policy
and running the business of the Group as well as the duties of
Chairman. The Board considers that, due to the nature and extent
of the Group’s operations, Mr. Yang is the most appropriate
chief executive because he possesses in-depth knowledge and
experience in fine chemicals business and is able to ensure the
sustainable development of the Group. Besides, he is the founder,
the chairman and the controlling shareholder of the Group since
its establishment and till now. Notwithstanding the above, the
Board will review the current structure from time to time. When
at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable leadership,
knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or outside
the Group, the Company may make the necessary amendments.

company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lam Kwok Kin, is
responsible for ensuring that board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. He is also responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board and board committee meetings.
Draft version of minutes is normally circulated to the Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version of which is open for the Director’s inspection. Moreover,
the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules, regulatory requirements and internal
codes of conduct of the Company. He has attained no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.

Indemnification

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The Board reviews
the extent of this insurance annually.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and are available
to shareholders upon request.

The chairmen of the committees will report the findings and
recommendations of the committees to the Board after each
meeting. The minutes of all meetings of the committees are
circulated to the Board for information.

Audit Gommittee

The Audit Committee was established in 2004. Its current members
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Yau Fook Chuen (the chairman
of the committee), Professor Xiang Ming and Mr. Wong Yik Chung,
John, in which Mr. Yau Fook Chuen possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
accounting, business and legal on the Audit Committee. The new
written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were adopted in March 2017 to conform
to the provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s
financial reporting and other information to shareholders, the
system of internal controls, risk management and the effectiveness
and objectiveness of the audit process. The Audit Committee also
provides an important link between the Board and the Company’s
auditors in matters coming within the scope of its terms of
reference and keeps under review the independence and objectivity
of the auditors.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings with the senior management to review, consider and
approve the interim and annual financial statements, discuss
internal controls matters and the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the Group’s
accounting principles and practices, Listing Rules and statutory
compliance and financial reporting matters.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conrvuen)
Remuneration Committes

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2004. Its current
members comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung,
John (the chairman of the committee), Professor Xiang Ming and
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen and two executive Directors, Mr. Han Huan
Guang and Ms. Lu Jiahua.

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group's
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that
no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The new terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the
provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the
Company’s website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of performance-based
remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
one meetings to review and consider the remuneration policy and
packages, including any discretionary management bonus of the
Executive Directors and senior management by reference to market
conditions, performance of the Group and the individual and
corporate goals.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conrvuen)
senior management remuneration by band

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group fell within
the following band:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. Its current
members comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang
Yirong (the chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Han Huan Guang
and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, Professor Xiang
Ming and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John. The Nomination Committee
has the duty of reviewing annually the board structure and
composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted
in March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a
copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
to review the structure, size and composition, and assessing the
independence of the INEDs.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides such explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and the
statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 53 to 60.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board has prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

MODEL CODE FOR SEGURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions on terms not less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors and all the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with all the relevant requirements as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives,
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. The systems and internal controls
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group.
Business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring risks associated with their respective units. The results
of evaluation will be reported to management through regular
internal meetings. Each year, management prepares the risk
assessment report listing the risks identified and management’s
assessment on the impact to the Group. The Board discusses
findings in the risk assessment report and evaluates the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system in
Board meeting.

The Group handles and disseminates inside information with due
care. Staff is required to comply with the confidentiality terms
inside the staff manual. Only personnel at appropriate level can get
reach of price sensitive and inside information.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

The Group does not have an internal audit function due to the size
of the Group and for cost effectiveness consideration. During the
year under review, the Board conducted reviews of the internal
control systems of the Company from time to time and considered
that such the internal control systems of the Company had been
implemented effectively. The reviews covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Board also considered the Group's
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in its
accounting and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget. The Group continues to review the need
for an internal audit function annually.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of
the Company received audit fee of approximately RMB2.22 million
for audit services provided to the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy
in March 2012 reflecting mostly the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Information
will be communicated to shareholders through: (i) continuous
disclosure to the Stock Exchange of all material information; (ii)
periodic disclosure through the annual and interim reports; (iii)
notices of meetings and explanatory material; (iv) the annual
general meetings and other general meetings; and (v) the
Company’s website at www.ecogreen.com.

General Meeting

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with shareholders and
encourage their participation. The Chairman of the Board attended
the AGM held in 2019 to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders. The external auditor also attended the annual general
meeting to answer questions of shareholders.

voting by pall

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the
circular to shareholders dispatched together with the annual report
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings. Poll
results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company subsequent to the close of the shareholders meeting.
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Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management has
maintained close communication with shareholders and investors
through email, conference call, one-on-one meetings, attending
broker conferences, and non-deal roadshows, to ensure that
investors and shareholders have received the Company’s updates in
a fair and timely manner and to facilitate their investment decision-
making. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner. To promote effective communication, the
Company also maintains corporate website (www.ecogreen.
com) where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of
the Shareholders are set out in Company’s Articles of Association.
Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an extraordinary
general meeting; (ii) put forward enquiries to the board of
directors; (iii) put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings; and
(iv) propose Directors for election. Details of relevant procedures
are available on the Company’s website.

constitutional Documents

There was no change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of EcoGreen International Group
Limited (the “Company”) submit their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINGIPAL ACTIVITIES, GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 4 to 11 and pages 17 to 21 respectively.

FINAL RESULTS

The final results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 61.

DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HK1.7 cents per ordinary share was paid
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 18
December 2019. The Board has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK4.8 cents per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2019. Together with the interim dividend, this will
bring the total dividend distribution to HK6.5 cents (2018: HK5.6
cents) per share for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 30
June 2020, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about
28 August 2020 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 24 July 2020.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 24(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to RMB507,313,000 (2018: RMB486,505,000).

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS - SHARE OPTIONS
GRANTED TO DIRECTORS AND SELECTED
EMPLOYEES

Details of the share options granted in prior years is set out in Note
24(b) to the consolidated financial statements and “Share options”
section contained in this Directors’ Report. No shares were issued
by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SEGURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had not
redeemed and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a prorata basis to existing
shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, restated and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 156. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622 Laws of Hong Kong).

lal RISk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw
materials and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in the
prices of such raw materials could materially and adversely affect
the Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects.

Raw Mater

Operational Risk

The Group’s production facilities emit pollutants and are subject
to various environmental protection laws and regulations in
China. Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with,
environmental protection laws or regulations may cause the
Group to incur additional costs and expenses. In addition, if the
production facilities of the Group experience power, steam or
water shortages, the Group's business and results of operations
may be harmed.

Gredit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually intensifies
in a time of weak economic performance. To minimize credit
risks, the management of the Group has appointed dedicated
staff members to handle procedures for determining credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures, to ensure follow-
up with all receivables in a timely manner. In addition, the Group
reviews the collectability of receivables at the end of a reporting
period, to ensure that sufficient impairment losses are provided for
in respect of uncollectible monies. Details of the credit risks are set
out in Note 3.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity RISKS

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. The management closely monitors the use of borrowings
to ensure that relevant covenants relating to loans are complied
with.
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KEY RISKS AND UNGERTAINTIES (conmivuen)
currency Risk

The Group has foreign currency transactions and foreign currency
borrowings, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The Group may enter into several foreign
currency forward contracts to mitigate the risks as necessary.
Details of the currency risk are set out in Note 3.1(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group also entered some interest rate swap contracts to hedge
the floating-rate bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to fix the
interest rate for a portion of the bank borrowings while keeping the
interest rate floating for the remaining portion of bank borrowing
floating. The management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider changing the proportion of the interest rate hedging.
Details of the interest rate risk are set out in Note 3.1(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Palicies and Performance

The Group emphasizes in environmental protection during its
production process and adopts various measures to ensure its
duties of protecting the environment. The Group continues to
update the requirements of the relevant environmental laws and
regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The Group
does not produce material waste nor emit material quantities of
pollutants during its production process. During the year under
review, the Group has complied with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations applicable to it in all material respects,
including waste water emission permit, gas emission permit and
others. The Group has also adopted measures in order to achieve
efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction. The
measures include wastewater and gas emission managements,
noise control, greenhouse gas emission and resources
management.
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KEY RISKS AND UNGERTAINTIES (conmmuen)
Compliance With Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the PRC
and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance. Substantially
all of the Group’s assets are located in the PRC and the Group’s
revenue is mainly derived from operations in the PRC. The Group
was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on 9 March
2004. During the year under review, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in various countries applicable to it in
all material respects.

DIREGTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Mr. Yang Yirong, Chairman & President

Mr. Gong Xionghui, executive Director

Ms. Lu Jiahua, executive Director

Mr. Han Huan Guang, executive Director
Mr. Lin Zhigang, executive Director

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung, executive Director

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, INED

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, INED

Professor Xiang Ming, INED
(appointed on 9 April 2019)

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 22 to 25.

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s articles
of association,Mr. Gong Xionghui, Mr. Han Huan Guang and
Mr. Lin Zhigang will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The INEDs were appointed for an initial term of not more than one
year and will be renewable automatically for successive term of
one year until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.
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DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
T0 THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
and the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 618
employees (2018: 510 employees). Staff costs including directors’
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 were approximately RMB76.57 million and
approximately RMB63.47 million, respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the top five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 36 and 9(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established its human resources policies and
procedures with a view to deploying the incentives and rewards
of the remuneration system. The remuneration package offered
to the staff is appropriate for the duties and in line with the
prevailing market terms. Staff benefits, including medical coverage
and provident funds, are provided to employees. The Group
has also established effective performance evaluation system in
which employees are properly rewarded on a performance-related
basis under the Group’s salary and bonus system. The Group
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the management, key technician and
other eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are set out
in Note 9(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors was interested in
any business apart from the business of the Group, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
and officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses
and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution or holding of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance
for the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be
incurred in the course of performing their duties as at the date of
this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest and the five
largest customers were 12% and 27 %, respectively. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and the five largest
suppliers were 8% and 26 %, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in
the Group's five largest customers and five largest suppliers noted
above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions conducted during the year under
review as disclosed in Note 35 to the financial statements did not
constitute connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code adopted by
the Company contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

() Shares (Including underlying shares)
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Number of shares held
(including underlying shares)

RO EE (BEEBRS)

% of the issued

Personal Corporate Underlying share capital

interests interests shares™ Total HB 3BT

Name of Directors EEgZ BAER EEER B R A ) et [ ENER
Mr. Yang Yirong 1B%aE%E 10,408,000 283,589,687 646,800 294,644,487 38.02%
Mr. Gong Xionghui BEJffEAEA 2,706,000 15,006,315 3,960,000 21,672,315 2.80%
Ms. Lu Jiahua EBRELLT 2,046,000 11,254,736 3,960,000 17,260,736 2.23%
Mr. Han Huan Guang BE LA 1,584,000 — 3,960,000 5,544,000 0.72%
Mr. Lin Zhigang WERIEE 2,376,000 — 3,960,000 6,336,000 0.82%
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen EREELE 420,000 — 646,800 1,066,800 0.14%
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John &£ %4 132,000 — 646,800 778,800 0.10%

Notes: BT -

(i) Mr. Yang Yirong is deemed to be interested in 283,589,687
shares of the Company held by Marietta Limited by virtue of it
being controlled by Mr Yang Yirong.

(i) Mr. Gong Xionghui is deemed to be interested in 15,006,315
shares of the Company held by Dragon Kingdom Investment
Limited by virtue of it being controlled by Mr Gong Xionghui.

Ms. Lu Jiahua is deemed to be interested in 11,254,736 shares
of the Company held by Sunwill Investments Limited by virtue
of it being controlled by Ms Lu Jiahua.

(iii)

(iv)

Underlying shares comprised the interest in the share options.

(i) 15 3% @t 55 A R i Marietta Limited M4
B A B 72 A 7 BT #E #9283,589,687 AR
AR A RRAD H AR ©

(i) 2= #8 % 4 A % %l Dragon Kingdom
Investment Limited MR &% B 2 A &)
Fi#5#915,006,3 15 A A RIAR D B R 2 ©

& R 2+ A 4% # Sunwill Investments
LimitedM# 18 BB Z QA ATFH
11,254,736 R AR A RIR D H R 2w ©

TRRARD B IR AR 2 e o

(iii)

(iv)
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (conrivuen)

(D)

Underlying Shares — Shares 0ptions

Share options, being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives, to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the
Company were granted to Directors, chief executives,
employees and certain participants pursuant to the share
option schemes approved by shareholders of the Company
at the general meeting held on 28 May 2014. Information
in relation to these share options during the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in “Share options” section
contained in this Directors’ Report.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
Directors and chief executives (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had
been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares
or warrants or debentures of the Company, its specified
undertakings and its other associated corporations required
to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Nominees shares of the Gompany's subsidiaries
neld in trust

A Director also hold nominee shares of certain subsidiaries
held in trust for the Group solely for the purpose of ensuring
that the relevant subsidiary has more than one member.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its specified undertakings or its other associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)).
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share options are granted to Directors, executives, employees
and business partners at the invitation of the Directors under the
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by shareholders at
general meeting held on 28 May 2014. The Scheme are designed
to motivate executives and key employees and other persons who
make a contribution to the Group and enable the Group to attract
and retain individuals with experience and ability and to reward
them for their past contributions.

The share options were granted at nil consideration. An option
may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the date of
the offer for the grant of the option and the amount payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option is HK$1.

The exercise price of the granted options is not less than the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares on the date of the
grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (c)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one share of the Company. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer for
the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required for the holding of an option before it can be exercised; the
share options have a contractual option term of 10 years.

The Company can issue share options so that the total number
of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under all the share option schemes does not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the
share option scheme. The Company may renew this limit at any
time, subject to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular
and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided that the number
of shares to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

As at 15 April 2020, share options to subscribe for a total of
24,776,400 option shares were still outstanding under the Scheme
which represent approximately 3.2% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital.
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SHARE UPTIUNS (CONTINUED)

An option must be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence
from the date of the offer for the grant of option is made, but shall
end in any event not later than 10 years from the date on which the
offer for the grant of the option is made, subject to the provisions
for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum
period required under the Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the approval of the Scheme after which no
option can be granted under the Scheme. However, options that
remain outstanding as at 27 May 2024 can be exercised until their

respective expiry dates.

The following table discloses details of share options outstanding

BRE e

BREARESFETY NG SARAZ BB
B AR B A ERRATE - MR ﬁf#%ﬁmki
RIESN - ZHHATEZRROBREE B
At MEEm A S EFL%&&%%F“
EETmI0FZHER - RIFEFRITRELR
MARARLBREZZFETRA  GRILE
BRBEREATEASGEREFEFE Z&E
HAPR -

BRIFEERITRELRAARAR L BEEZ
EETRA  DRIYEABBRERTENS
ARBEEFACRERR -

R E B EIBERI10F AT AR - It
BIBRBETEIR L ERE - A - N20244F
S5A27BARITE Z B T1E - EEHE
BEmBEAL- -

TRHFIMHR2019F12 A3 1 HREFEE K176

as at 31 December 2019 under the Scheme and the movements ZBREFIBERENFAZESD) -
during the year.
At At
Exercise 1 January Exercised 31 December
price Date of Exercisable 2019 during 2019
fie®  grant period R2019% the year R2019%
Type of Grantee RRAER HKS 7% REAH (iged 1818 ERfHE 128318
Category 1 - Directors El1-8%
Mr. Yang Yirong BRBEE 170 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 646,800 - 646,800
Mr. Gong Xionghui BiEREE 170 1122014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000
Ms. Lu Jiahua EFEQT 170 1122014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000
Mr. Han Huan Guang BERREE 170 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000
Mr. Lin Zhigang HERIEE 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERERE 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 646,800 - 646,800
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BREARE 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 646,800 - 646,800
Sub-total Gt 17,780,400 - 17,780,400
Category 2 - Bhl2-
Employees under continuous  HEER
employment contract &20EE 170 1122014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,036,000 - 3,036,000
Category 3 - Bh3-
Consultants B 170 1122014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000
Total LS 24,776,400 - 24,776,400
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS® INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2019, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares

Directors Report
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REARREMNESIESTRAEMRA - R
201912 A31H  RAR ARG SkERE R+
HERBEFES RS ROIEXVEE2 KR35 5 E
NERAREBWBEZEZIOAR - KERLAR
NEIEREES LB EIIE336KFE 250
MrERIAR 2BRR(RARAEFSHZSITH
ABBRINIT -

iF 2 2 B fn

Number of shares held

FrsRH#E
Beneficial Corporate Investment Shareholding
Name owner interests manager Total percentage
£ BHEBEA EE R RELHE st BERESL
Marietta Limited 283,589,687 - - 283,589,687 36.59%
FMR LLC - - 70,802,800 70,802,800 9.14%
Guan Nian Trading Limited 58,500,000 - - 58,500,000 7.55%
Kwok Ying Lan - 58,500,000 - 58,500,000 7.55%
HHRF
Notes: BT

(i) These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned
by Marietta Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was
directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yang Yirong.

(i) These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned
by Guan Nian Trading Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
was directly and beneficially owned by Ms. Kwok Ying Lan.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
by any persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company, who had interest or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

(i) ZER D MAMarietta LimitedZz Z2& &2 » ¥ H
ZATIERHEE  MMarietta Limited 2 2fE 2%
TRARAAGR B EEEERER

(i) &% 5 B 19 A Guan Nian Trading Limited Z %
EER - WAZARE=ES * MGuan Nian
Trading Limited 2 #0 2 3 17 AR 28 B LA 2B 28 3§ 22
TEEERRS -

BrEXHEEEN  AAFLEENS - 12019
F128318 ' KEBRARRTTHRAE AN -
BEMATRARR ZRDAEERD TP ES

REIAR -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
most of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2019,
save for the deviations from Code Provision A.2.1 and A.5.1 of the
CG Code. Information on the deviations and further information
on the Company’s corporate governance Code is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” as set out on pages 26 to 39.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares at
15 April 2020.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements and up to the date of this report, there was no
significant event relevant to the business or financial performance
of the Group that come to the attention of the Directors after the
year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors
Yang Yirong
Chairman & President

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020

h? EcoGreen International Group Limited /ff/ 6 EIER =@ B R A 7

TEER

FERE BRBA2IELRFBAS GRS R
ERTEHTANEN - RABRENE2019412
B31BILtFEE—HET EWAERNERI14FE K
HOCEEEARTHD) BEZERERARQA
TEERTAZE—FSERENFE26E398[ b
¥ERWE] -

ZELARERE

BEAFAMSE E’Jéfﬂb(&?vt%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ £
2020F4 A15H » ERARRBARHWARFR
2 ARFIEBITHE25% MG

HEHRERE

BA GBS MR M EE37FR IR EE SN - B = 20194
NRANBLEFEARBEARREABRA - HE
SIREEIEHALSEES KV ERRBHEN
BEAEMH-

7% 4]

REHMBHRREMBRIBAIESMEBM
Bz RRBEETRER  BRTEERERE
F -

1%2«%%%
ﬁ%ﬁmﬂ

&7 0 202063 A31H



ndependent Auditor

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of EcoGreen International Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of EcoGreen International
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 61 to 155, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;
o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our apinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report
8 M 1% B

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Net realisable value of inventories

o Impairment of intangible assets

(i) Netrealisable valug of inventories

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements

At 31 December 2019, inventories of the Group amounted to
RMB196.6 million. As described in the accounting policies in
Note 2.10 to the consolidated financial statements, inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Management applied judgment in determining the net
realisable value for inventories. Net realisable value is
determined based upon a detailed analysis of inventories
aging on a product by product basis, with reference to
the current marketability and latest invoice prices of the
respective finished goods and the current market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period. Inventory has been
written down by RMB7.1 million to reduce the carrying value
of certain inventories to their estimated net realisable value as
at 31 December 2019.

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances and
the judgment involved by management in determining the net
realisable value of the inventories.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
net realisable value of inventories included:

- Understood and evaluated the appropriateness and
consistency of the basis management used in estimating
the level of provision for inventories by comparing
the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning, on a
sample basis, to the realised amount; and reviewing the
level of inventory write-offs during the year in relation
to inventories loss.

- Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventories
aging used by management to estimate the appropriate
provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories.

- Performed audit analytics on inventories holding and
movement data to identify inventories with indication of
slow moving or obsolescence.

- Checked the utilisation of inventories by production
subsequent to the year, on a sample basis, for the
appropriateness of the associated provision made.

- Compared the carrying amounts, on a sample basis,
of inventories to their net realisable value through a
review of sales subsequent to the year end to check
for completeness of the associated provision. Where
there are no subsequent sales of the respective products
after the year end, we challenged management as to
the realisable value of the products, corroborating
explanations with the aging, sales orders, historical
margins and marketability of the respective inventories,
as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
assumptions of management in relation to the assessment on
the net realisable value of inventories to be supportable by
available evidence.

Independent Auditor's Report
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Impairment of intangible assets

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 December 2019, carrying amount of the Group’s
intangible assets amounted to RMB192.6 million. As
described in the accounting policies in Note 2.7 to the
consolidated financial statements, intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

The Group’s intangible assets represent development costs
incurred on the designing, constructing and testing for
new or improved products and processes of production.
Management judgment is required in identifying whether
there are indicators that intangible assets are impaired; and
in the determination of their recoverable amounts, which
is primarily based on the expectation of future sales of
the relevant underlying products and the current market
conditions. Accumulated impairment charge of RMB29.5
million has been recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of
certain intangible assets to their recoverable amounts as at 31
December 2019.

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances and
the judgment involved by management in determining the
recoverable amounts of the intangible assets.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on intangible assets included:

- Checked the accuracy of the carrying amount of each
intangible asset against the books and records.

= Understood and evaluated the appropriateness and
consistency of the basis for management used in
identifying impairment indicator and estimating such
impairment provision by comparing the forecasted sales
and gross margin prepared by management for the
respective products against their historical performance,
production plans and confirmed sales orders, where
relevant.
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- Where historical pattern was not demonstrated by
those newer products, we challenge management as to
their sales projections including pricing, corroborating
explanations with the price of similar products in the
market and sales quotations, where available, and the
underlying marketability study documentation.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
assumptions of management in relation to impairment
assessment on intangible assets to be supportable by available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor's Report
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mak Tze Leung, William.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement - oy function of Expense 47/

B FER —memnmes

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31HILF/E

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ks ARBTT ARBTT
Revenue PN 5 2,422,810 2,198,217
Cost of sales $HEE Ak N 8 (1,902,882) (1,665,994)
Gross profit ER 519,928 532,223
Other income and (losses)/gains, net HAhUg A K (fE518) 6 (7,878) 7,201
ek —F5m
Selling and marketing costs SHE N TSR 8 (35,442) (31,029)
Administrative expenses THER 8 (109,072) (93,733)
Net (loss allowance)/reversal of loss & @& EEEEE (5H18),/ 20 (462) 1,530
allowance on financial assets 1% 88
Operating profit fed=ingl 367,074 416,192
Finance income B isiles 7 41,755 43,433
Finance expenses BB R 7 (84,009) (143,742)
Net finance expenses %8R T 7 (42,254) (100,309)
Share of profit of an associate FEIR B R (D5 1" 1,638 966
Profit before taxation R %4 A F1 5 326,458 316,849
Taxation B 12 (97,418) (101,558)
Profit for the year FEFE 229,040 215,291
Profit/(loss) attributable to: M (BER)RBER
Owners of the Company VNGB Y=y 229,949 215,291
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR M A 2 (909) -
229,040 215,291
Earnings per share attributable to ~ FEFRWERE
owners of the Company for the RARBEE S
year (expressed in RMB per share)  (GI&IAARES|R)
- Basic —HA 13 Al e 27.78 Cents sy
- Diluted —#5E 13 Al e 27.77 Cents oy

Lt & GF R R B B R — O BORE o

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 22019512 A31H ILFE

2019
Note RMB’000
ks ARBT T
Profit for the year FEFE 229,040
Other comprehensive loss: HEMiRaEk
Item that may be reclassified to HgngwEaoEh
profit or loss I E
Currency translation differences GNEE AT = RE
Other comprehensive loss FEHEMREIBREE

for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

229,031

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

fre s (BiR) B

SER
RRBERE
FEFER R

229,940
(909)

229,031

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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onsolidated Balance sheet /77

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2019 #2019F12H31H

2019
Note RMB’000
B 5E ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Land use rights st fsE P4 15(a) =
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 16 1,317,753
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(b) 43,677
Intangible assets mILEE 17 192,614
Investment in an associate Bt & 11 10,334
Loan to an associate B EE 35 -
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSHERE 29 4,907
Financial assets at fair value BA R EBEFAHAMD
through other comprehensive AW mEr eREE
income 18 200
Prepayments SEUNES 21 32,116
1,601,601
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 22 196,601
Trade receivables and bills JRE AR BR R K FE R R 4
receivable 20 999,379
Prepayments and other receivables 81 2 & H i fE U 2k 21 329,076
Amount due from a related JE U BB 5 208
company 35 39
Derivative financial instruments PTESBITA 19 276
Pledged bank deposits M2 RITER 23 85,664
Short-term bank deposits RRERITIF R 23 513,734
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESEEY 23 958,126
3,082,895
Total assets BmEE 4,684,496
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERkEE
Equity attributable to owners EERBREARREE
of the Company
Share capital %N 24 75,380
Share premium f& A5 B 24 341,876
Other reserves Hib 25 156,003
Retained earnings RE AT 1,718,479
2,291,738
Non-controlling interests IR R 4,056
Total equity mER 2,295,794

2018
RMB’000
ARETTT

39,424
934,193

160,875
8,696
3,000
4,889

200
27,820

1,179,097

245,778

942,952
237,607

967
1,416
66,090
629,650
897,903

3,022,363

4,201,460

75,380
341,876
155,470

1,523,113

2,095,839

2,095,839
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
BHEERER

As at 31 December 2019 #2019F 12 H31H

2019
Note RMB’000
B 5E AR®T T
LIABILITIES 8@
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Borrowings ER=d 28 546,590
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) 1,685
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHAE 29 89,250
637,525
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables and bills payable FERERR N ENMEE 26 322,922
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS BB E 23,248
Borrowings (=3¢ 28 1,351,189
Lease liabilities HEaRE 15(b) 3,546
Derivative financial instruments PTEeMI A 19 1,172
Amount due to a related company  fE{ BBk 75 208 35 2,309
Accruals and other payables st B R K EAME R 27 46,765
Amount due to a director e —EEFE 35 26

1,751,177

Total liabilities weEs

2,388,702

Total equity and liabilities BERREE

4,684,496

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 155 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and were
signed on its behalf.

YANG YIRONG
w8 E
Chairman

T
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2018
RMB’000
ARET T

743,743

79,600

823,343

228,822
23,153
972,007

1,516
644
56,106
30

1,282,278

2,105,621

4,201,460

BiiAHEERBEREENT—HEE -

F612 1558 A M IEMRE RK2020%63 A
JSTHAESEHZ  THEEENREREE -

LU JIAHUA
ExRE
Executive director

HITEF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31HILF/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRRRAARRE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserves  earnings Total  interests equity

BA  BFEE  EtBR  REEA 4t FERtER 4R
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2018 R018F1A18 28 75,380 341,876 155,103 1339043 1,911,402 - 191140
Comprehensive income GalE
Profit for the year EEHE - - - 215,291 215,291 - 215291
Other comprehensive loss EGAEL
Currency translation differences IEREER - - (6) - (6) - (6)
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) 018554/ (85)
for 2018 az - - 6) 215,291 215,285 - 215,285
Transactions with owners HEEREENEFEED
in their capacity as owners SRETHRS
2017 final dividend WITEZRBRE - - - (20,702) (20,702) - (20,702)
2018 interim dividend 0185 2 BRE - - - (10,146) (10,146) - (10,146)
Transfer from retained earnings (Note 25)  (RE R F|EH (Miz2s) - - n (373) - - -
Total transactions with owners HEREFAZIAREEN
in their capacity as owners SHEARANAE - - EIE] (31,221) (30,848) - (30,848)
Balance at 31 December 2018 2018128318
Prs 530 34187 155470 153113 2,0958%9 - 209589
Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A 18 268 75,380 341,876 155,470 1,523,113 2,095,839 2,095,839
Comprehensive income/(loss) GekE/ (BR)
Profit for the year EEHE 229,949 229,949 229,040
Other comprehensive loss ERAE%
Currency translation differences EfEEE )] ©)
Total comprehensive incomef{loss) for 2019 201955 Al /(E)
ag 229,949 229,940 229,031
Transactions with owners HREFAZIANEEN
in their capacity as owners FRETNRS
Change in ownership interests in NHBRA ERERR
subsidiaries without change of control  EE)ZHETE 5,035 5,035 ! 10,000
2018 final dividend 01857 RARE (27,183) (27,183) (27,183)
2019 interim dividend 01975 HRE (11,893) (11,893) (11.893)
Transfer from retained earnings (Note 25) REEFIER (Bi525) (542) > =
Total transactions with owners HERHEENRRAEN
in their capacity as owners SRRARGNEE (34,583) (34,041) } (29,076)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318
A3 ] 75,380 341,876 156,003 1,718,479 2,291,738 4,056 2,295,794

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be bt & i ss & &7k fE B H 3T — G RIS -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 22019512 A31H ILFE

/7 Gonsolidated statement of Gash Flows

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
ihg=s AR®T AREETFTT
Cash flows from operating RETEHNRSHE
activities
Cash generated from operations  #&&&EEFTEMIRSE 420,095 10,100
Interest paid 2ARFE (95,054) (77,516)
Income tax paid EATFTER (87,691) (79,813)
Net cash generated from /(used in) &LEEMRE(FTH)
operating activities B4 HER 237,350 (147,229)
Cash flows from investing RETHNEESRE
activities
Additions to property, plant and  ¥% - BE R R EIE N
equipment (390,722) (605,102)
Additions to intangible assets mAE (54,534) (57,131)
Placement of structured bank BB AR ERITER
deposits (1,204,000) (1,028,184)
Redemption of structured bank FE Ol &I RITIT R
deposits 1,299,000 430,184
Decrease/(increase) in short-term g4/ (3&40) 58 ERSR 1 T1Z 30
bank deposits 20,916 (15,100)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B #E3RER1T1F 20 AN (19,574) (8,836)
Interest received 2R B 42,327 26,814
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ%¢@¥ BE RS EBEZIE
plant and equipment 2,993 33
Repayment from loan to an B HEEEE
associate 3,000 -
Net cash used in investing activities 3% &;EEFF IR & F %8 (300,594) (1,257,322)
Cash flows from financing BREZENRERE
activities
Proceeds from borrowings BEMER 1,803,309 1,788,287
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (1,647,124) (1,343,691)
Decrease in amount due to a director fEf—ZEE B 4 (4) -
Dividends paid A% 8 X £+ (39,076) (30,848)
Principle elements of HMENMTZ NS E D
lease payments (3,629) -
Consideration received from UWER SEFERE MR 25 2 (B
non-controlling interests 10,000 -
Net cash generated from MEESTSIR S FEE
financing activities 123,476 413,748
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERIRLSZEYE M~
and cash equivalents (BA)EE 60,232 (990,803)
Cash and cash equivalents FENZ7REREESZEND
at beginning of the year 897,903 1,888,712
Exchange losses on cash and ReEMRSZEY 2 EHIBXR
cash equivalents 9) (6)
Cash and cash equivalents FERZESRBRESEEY
at end of the year 958,126 897,903

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in L& HBE S REREENTE—HHE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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(i)

Notes 1o the Gonsolidated Financlal statements /7

GENERAL INFORMATION

EcoGreen International Group Limited (“Ecogreen” or “the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are
principally engaged in the production and trading of fine
chemicals from natural resources for use in aroma chemicals
and pharmaceutical products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3
March 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong is situated at Suite 5301, 53rd Floor, Central
Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

BasiS of preparation

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("HKCO") Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) which are
measured at fair value.

(ii)

A Gr SRR M AT

—REH
THREREEFRAR(TFBIH AR
ADEEMBAR (SR AEE])Z21)E
SHMRXABEREEREER WARTE
tB2mhEEERNBFACSEm

RNARNR2003F3A3AREBHAESHEHE R
AAERERSFMK I AERE2ERA
7] o EsEftit = E it A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

RARZBPRERENNEBNETELE
WEAEEBSETAEBE 18P IRELS3
E5301=

RRRRBERBBAERZAER AR ([
P ) EMR LT o
BRBERAEIN  AEHBBREIAUAA
REDIE -

TESHHEME

BEASHMBEREAFANTIZSHABE
XTI - [RABRMAIN - L FRREN
ERHAEFENERER -

it A
BTERMBRELENRERQAR
Bl
ARANEH SRR R RS BB
(BB SRS LR REB DI E6228
(ARSI 2 BBRE -

RS2 R AN &
BETEREEREREBGE(BEILET
B)ARABEEI  GHMBHRERTD
AR Se B AN EL AR B
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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(iv)

68
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

BasiS of preparation (continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for the annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HKAS 19 (Amendment) — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

HKAS 28 (Amendment) — Long-term Interests in Associates or
Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

The Group had to change its accounting policies and make
retrospective adjustments, where relevant, as a result of
adopting HKFRS 16.

Save as disclosed below, the adoption of other amendments
on standards and interpretation did not have any material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2019 reporting periods and have not been early adopted
by the Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ 14 B £ B AR A 7
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2.1
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(iv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

BasIS 0f preparation (continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” from 1 January
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018
reporting period, as permitted under the specific transitional
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing standard are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019 in
each territory or region where the lease assets are located.
The weighted average discount rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 5.18%.

The difference between the operating lease commitments
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 and the lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet upon the date
of initial application mainly arose from the adjustments as a
result of discounting the future lease payments to the present
value upon adoption of HKFRS 16 and applying the practical
expedient to account for those lease terms ends within 12
months of the date of initial application in the same way as
short-term leases.

2.

2]
(v)

B BF B 5 R P o

FESHHEBRE o)

REEE )

RA(ERMBREER)F165% [
g

REEMN2019F1 A1 BEENCE LR
HMEERYE 1657 [HE] BAEETE
EH2018F R EEATLL RS EE - K
ERRRERIME ERE IR T A5 R o 3
MASEAMEFNEHDBERAZDR
2019FF 1 A1BEHWIEEBBERTHER

FAC BBV R EERDE1690E - AE
B RBBCEA ST EANE1 7R HE
PEAKEHENTHERRATHERE -
LB EARISAEMNKNEEZ - iR
BARAFERAEEEMERDEKEE
WA2019F1 A1EMEGSEEFEET
BRIR - 2019118 - ERARZER
&8 B/ N T 95 A RIS = 5 5K0R X
B5.18% o

MR2018F 12 A3 AR ENKELTHERKE
HEERERBAPIEEAHEEABRT
BRANEEAGZHNEEEEZRHNE
FCE BT RELERDE 165 GRRAE
NHMREREMETHRAZRREAER
R ARZER 8 X ER B B
TR I2EA 2 EEMEARELEH

HE -
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

RS SRR MY At

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(v) Adoption of HKFRS 16 "Leases” (continued)

10

(a)

(b)

Measurement of lease liabilities

FESHHEBRE o)

nNo

21 BREBEEE m)

(V) JRAC(BERMBREEA)F165% 1
g1(8)

(@) FFEMHEARE

RMB'000
ARETT
Operating lease commitments disclosed R2018F12 A31 B #KE
at 31 December 2018 B TH B ARG 8,439
Discounted using the Group's incremental REBERERERBHIEE
borrowing rate at the date of initial BEFNXRFH
application 7,962
Less: W
Short-term leases recognised on a BEREERNES
straight-line basis as expense HERX (491)
Low-value leases recognised on a BEERERNIKE
straight-line basis as expense AEMZ (24)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 #2019 1 A1 BERHHESE 7,447
Of which are: B
— Current lease liabilities -RBREERE 3,371
- Non-current lease liabilities —FNBEERE 4,076
7,447

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the

(b) FHEEREEE

ERAEEERSFANEERENS
A8 - WAREFEEERIE Y

reclassifications from land use rights to right-of-use ZEEBERTIELFAE - 152019

assets arising from the new leasing standards and

FIAIRLHERREN S ERE

therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet as at REEE -

1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 BasIS of preparation (continued)
(v) Adoption of HKFRS 16 "Leases’ (continued)

(c)

Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1
January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

. Right-of-use assets — increase by RMB46,871,000

o Land use rights — decrease by RMB39,424,000

. Lease liabilities (current portion) — increase by
RMB3,371,000

° Lease liabilities (non-current portion) — increase by
RMB4,076,000

There was no impact on retained earnings on 1 January
2019.

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

o the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

o reliance on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to performing
an impairment review — there were no onerous
contracts as at 1 January 2019;

o the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at
1 January 2019 as short-term leases;

o the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application; and

o the use of hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend the
lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and HKFRIC 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’.

B BF B 5 R P o

2. FESHHEBME &)

21 BREBEEE s
(V) R (EBHKREEN)E16% [

g1(&)
() M2019F1A1HEEEBGEXR

PR E
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46,871,0007C

e THMFERAE-BRIARE
39,424,0007T
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By 8B
FE o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

supsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ 1 BEEREE@E AR A A
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2.0

2.2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

SUDSIGIHHE}S (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If these amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

2.

2.2

2.2.1
(a)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

SUUS|G|8HBS (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in equity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2.

2.3

2.4

NOtes

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting after initially being recognised at cost.
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the associate in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
associate in other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of an associate is tested for impairment
in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.8.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive Directors.
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(b)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency transiation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if
they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement, within “finance expenses”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement on a net basis within
‘other (losses)/gains, net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency transiation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operation
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on
which construction work has not been completed and
machinery pending installation, is stated at historical cost,
which includes construction expenditures incurred, cost
of machinery, and other direct costs capitalised during
the construction and installation period, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction-in-progress until the construction
and installation work is completed. On completion, the
construction-in-progress is transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2.6.2 Other property, plant and equipment

18

Other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

30 to 40 years
5 to 15 years
5 to 10 years
5to 10 years
5to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8). Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised within “other
(losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated income statement.
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2.1
2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are
fulfilled:

(a) itis technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

(c) thereis an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

(f)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years.

B BF B 5 R P o

2. FESHTHEBME &)

2.1

B E

2.7.1 HAERBIE
MERAREERTIERY - BERT &
BHAFTERINRERZHABEEERAS
RUATMEHEXRBERSEFLEE

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

()

ERMERSRERELEE I
AHEARHE -

EEEARETKLERREHESH
BEE

AEAREEERETLEE

BRAMETAETH B EEEE
AR

AEaEMEN  MBREEMER
TRABELFERILERRETLE
B R

ARG EREERETLEENM
FH

PREE LR R E AL F BT E
FIVERIS  Z AITER R X B AT
ERERMEERSEE -

BERNEHRBERAERLELEE KA
RORTESF R A Y o

Annual Report 2019 /) —Z— L4 4 % 79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR

2.

2.8

2.9

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet ready
for use are not subject to amortisation and are at least
tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

80

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (“OCI"”) or
through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

29 F|ﬂaﬂC|a| 8888[8 (continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

2.9.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other (losses)/gains, net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
GRLIR R e

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

29 Flﬂaﬂ[]lal 8888[8 (continued)

2.9.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

J FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in “other (losses)/gains, net’.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
‘other (losses)/gains, net” and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
‘other (losses)/gains, net” in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in ‘other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated
income statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other

changes in fair value.
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2.

2.9

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

F|ﬂaﬂ8|a| 8888[8 (continued)

2.9.4 Impairment

2.9.5

2.9.6

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 20 for further details.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the expected
credit loss is based on the 12-month expected credit loss. It is
the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that results from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
expected credit loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair
value on the date the derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair values at the
end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
the item being hedged.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had not designated any
derivatives as hedging instruments. Changes in fair values of
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are being
included in the consolidated income statement as ‘other
(losses)/gains, net’.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivanles

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note 2.9.3 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 2.9.4 for a description of the Group's
impairment policies.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or share options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade payables

84

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade payable are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

215 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

216 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale. Borrowing costs are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

217 Current and dererred income tax

(a)

(b)

86

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent

that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

217 Current and dererred iIncome 1ax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(i)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

2.18.1Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of the leave.

2182 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

2]8 EmUIOVBB DBHBTI[S (continued)

2183 Share-based compensation

(a)

88

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(share options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition,
in some circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair
value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service commencement period
and grant date. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (and share
premium).
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

2]8 EmDIOVBB DBHBTI[S (continued)

2183 Share-based compensation (continued)

(b)

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of share options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.184 Pension obligations

Group companies operate various defined contribution plans.
The plans are generally funded through payments to trustee-
administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods. The Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

219 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

2.

2184

B BF B 5 R P o

FESHHEBRE o)

BEREA (&)
BHRZMEE)
EENEENBO AT HERNTS

ARFMEBNERTOBIET 2%
TAMMBIRE  WRAEARBA - KB
TRBHAREE SEEHANDARE
38 - WESEEHNER - BB
ATUANEN - YAEE DA AEE
B -

BRAEEE

SERRREZ AT REAREE o HFE
E-REBRXETEESNRMEE -

ERRFGEE—EARER —EEBE
XA HRERINGT S - ERES W ER
ERMEERAMABRTIAEAEE HRIAE
A RBZNER - NEEITEEE K
HEE (RS ST — PR - B E R
& ARBEEFIE - AR B REE
77 3 A R R AL A B IR B AR R AR B 5
K - ARBERHENKR - BIEE— N
RER - HRERNESERSERRNE
P o TR R AR IR 2 R R 3l AT R A R 2R
NRMERSEE

B

EAKERCEENEHMELREGNE
RIHEEES - RAUEFRZHEERNTL
NHEEEY kBRI SEMFHEEDL
B e

Annual Report 2019 /) —Z— L4 4 % 89



Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

219 PFUVISIOHS (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2 20Revenue recognition

90

Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in the production and
trading of fine chemicals from natural resources for use in
aroma chemicals and pharmaceutical products. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the customer,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered, as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due. Substantially all of the Group’s revenue are
recognised at a point in time during the year.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ 1 BEEREE@E AR A A

FESHHEBRE o)

i om)

MBEZREBLUEY  EF2EHAEPEE
R E AT RE N - RIRTARIBE TS0 AR Bl B
BEE - EER—EHEIMEENE
fi] — {18 B 18R ) B IR & AT RE 1 15
1K D/RREREE -

BEREEBHNREHARBHAEN
RAMBEENHSEGRERSE -
ANEERENTINESRRERTISY
EEOERERZEBRERROTEH
TR 2K o B Ry ) HE R 1 8 0 ) 3% A RE R
RMEFX

220 W z5 HE 7R

HEEMm
AEBEIERELAENEENARAER
SLEM RN T B2 am & B B Emr 54l
tBm- - HEDNEMNEZEHEEEE
(ERXZXNTEFE)  BXEKRETE
TEFERTFPHEMMNR KRR - XY
TTRERBERETEME  REBRKXE
KEREEBRTEF  AEFEREBHE
BHERWER  BRIEXERBHMRAE
EEEBREBERE T ARKREOE EK
BEE -

ZFHENIRERTIRE HRT AN EREN
BT - RE RIRERL T IAER -

FEYFIRNE MR R - BN ME
FFR - N2 2 ERRERNRS - A
BRERREEN - AEBENBARED MK
AN FNRE A RERER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

2.2316ases

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group, as lessee, had substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership were classified as
finance leases. Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
were included in other short-term and long-term payables.
Each lease payment was allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost was charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases was depreciated over the assets’ useful life or
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee
were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases for real estate for
which the Group is lessee, it has elected not to separate lease
and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as
a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

228 LBaSBS (continued)

92

Asset and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

o Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o Variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date;

o Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

3 Where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received;

o Uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for lease held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

o Makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Gonsalidated Financial Statements
& b B 75 ¥k B At

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERBME»)

POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2231eases (continued) 2.23 41 = (ﬁ““

The Group is exposed to potential future increase in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

] The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o Any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received;

. Any initial direct costs; and
° Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use assets is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of warehouses
and staff quarters and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise staff quarters.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PULIGIES (CONTINUED)

2.24Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, as
appropriate.

2 26 Financial guarantee contracts

94

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

. the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, trade and other receivables, loan
to an associate, amount due from a related company, FVOCI
and derivative financial instruments. The Group’s financial
liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables,
amount due to a related company, amount due to a director,
derivative financial instruments and lease liabilities.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposure, The
board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that liquid funds
are placed with financial institutions registered with sound
credit standing in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate credit
history. The Group performs credit evaluations on its
customers.

Trade receivables are due within three months from the date
of billing. For certain customers with good credit history,
an extended period up to 180 days is allowed. As at 31
December 2019, 58% of the total trade receivables were due
within three months (2018: 65%).

As at 31 December 2019, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 18% of the trade receivable
carrying amount (2018: 25%). The Group considers the
largest customers are financially healthy with no significant
credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents the
carrying amounts of trade receivables in the balance sheet.
Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in Note
20.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
Flﬂaﬂ[]lal HSK TaCtUrS (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group categorises its trade receivables, except those
individually assessed, based on the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over a period of 36 months and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

Given the track record of regular repayment of trade
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by these customers is not significant, taking into
account forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be insignificant and loss allowance
provided on a collective basis was amounted to RMB900,000
(2018: RMB1,778,000).

For trade receivables relating to accounts in which objective
evidence that the debtor faces significant financial difficulties
or enter liguidation, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. Accordingly, specific loss allowance of
RMB4,773,000 (2018: RMB3,433,000) were made as at 31
December 2019.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable
banks. The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the
past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is
assessed to be close to zero and no provision was made as of
31 December 2019.

The credit quality of loan to an associate, amount due from
a related company, bills receivables and other receivables
excluding prepayments and tax recoverable has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion that the credit
risk of the loan to an associate and amounts due from related
parties is low due to the sound collection history of the
receivables due from them. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of the loan to an associate, amount due from a related
company, bills receivables and other receivables excluding
prepayments and tax recoverable is assessed to be close to
zero and no provision was made as of 31 December 2019.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conruen)

HnanCiE” HSK TaC[[JrS (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial

institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on demand
clause which gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time, the amounts repayable are classified in
the earliest time bracket in which the lender could demand
repayment.

Total

contractual

Carrying  undiscounted

amount cash flow

BHE]

RERH

BERE

BHEE 2

RMB'000 RMB'000

The Group pie-40] AEBTT AEETT
At 31 December 2019 120195124318

Borrowings g 1,897,779 1,962,812

Trade payables and bills payables ~ ETERFREREE 322,92 322,922

Accruals and other payables ErERREMER 24,082 24,082

Amount due to a related company TR A FUE 2,309 2,309
Derivatives settled on net basis ~ FEAEHELRIEA

- Interest rate swaps -HEE# (896) (896)

Lease liabilities figak 5,231 5,510

(b)

Repayable
on demand

REEAH
RMB000

AR¥TT

671,210

AP RRATE

MERRER »

B 75 R e A 2= ()

REBE S @

AEENBREERERRBESTRK
UARRETEERZHENRE - AERE
REMNESHE ARESZIZoRE
BEHEREERANERES  NnrEH

TR T AKERGEERIAG KRR
RAeng(BRRRANMNEH (B
M) EE B NIRITH R E /R SR
MERBBENARBERREFEZNTNZE
BHRENRISBE DI HBER -

MRERBABE - RREREEZ &
R BT B R AR E ] 55 P B 1 11 3t
2RER  ZENNBENRBEXRESR
B MERARTREBRER 2 PR REME
AR o

More than
2 years but
|ess than

5 years

More than
1 year but
less than
2years

Within
1 year

—5#
EFEmE
RMB'000

KRBT

“ER
BFRRE
RMB'000
INL R

—FR
RMB000
ARETT

123,595 395,909
L 298,268 =
= 24,082 =
2,309 - =

172,098

(1
3113 731

(1,161)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivuen)

8] FlﬂaﬂClal HSK TaCIOTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
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3. BIKERERE &

31 WMEERREZEg)
(b) REESERH)

Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Repayable Within less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year 2 years 5 years
EHE]
REZRH
Reig —£f iy
HEfE ] FEANE £ BRERE i3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
The Group pieL] ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2018 2018512318
Borrowings ] 1,115,750 1,788,574 595,717 420,960 439,453 332,444
Trade payables and bills payables  ERBZRENZE 28,822 208,822 8,842 219,980 - -
Accruals and other payables B REMER 25,533 25,533 - 25,533 - -
Amount due to a related company  FEEEE 7 708 644 644 644 - - -
Derivatives settled on net basis ~ FEAEELRIEA
- Interest rate swaps -f|®E# (349) (349) - 81 (430) -
- Forward foreign exchange -EHNEAR
contracts 249 249 - 249 - -

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of
the Group’s financial liabilities based on the scheduled
repayments set out in the respective agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such amounts due and
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the agreements.
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3.
3.1

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

aFMBREMNE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen) 3. MKERERE#
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.0 BB REREE e
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBEESRRRE)
Maturity Analysis -
financial liabilities based on scheduled repayments
BRAMM-ERBEEERNSRER
Total More than ~ More than
contractual 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than
amount  cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
G
RERH -Ef -3
FEE RERELE -Ex  {(BFRRE  BRERE ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  AR¥TR  ARETn  ARMTr  ARETR  ARETR
As at 31 December 2019 R20195128318
Borrowings 5 1,897,779 1,976,091 1,400,823 403,170 172,098 1,976,091
Trade payables and bills payables ERERRENRE 392 mIn mIm - 92
Accruals and other payables FE B REMERF 24,082 24,08 24,08 - 24,082
Amount due to a related company [EfAE AR 2309 2309 2309 - 2,309
Derivatives settled on net basis HRAEE LR
- Interest rate swaps -fRE# (896) (896) (11) (1,161) (896)
- Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ — ZEVNEAR = = = = =
Lease liabilities HERR 5,231 5,510 3713 731 5,510
As at 31 December 2018 20185124318
Borrowings ] 1,715,750 1,801,509 1,015,728 450,378 335,403 1,801,509
Trade payables and bills payables ENEFRENES 228,822 228,822 228,822 - - 228,822
Accruals and other payables [E B R H MM 25,533 25,533 25,533 - - 25,533
Amount due to a related company ENERLTE 644 644 644 - - 644
Derivatives settled on net basis FRLE TR
- Interest rate swaps ~FlxE#H (349) (349) 81 (430) - (349)
- Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ —EEESNEAR 249 249 249 - - 249
Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (0 BeRERAAEBEFNRER

(c)

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank borrowings. Bank borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk which is partially offset by bank balances held at variable
rates. Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank
borrowings are disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group analyses its interest rate
exposure on a dynamic basis and to hedge its variable rate by
fixed rate instruments, when necessary. Various scenarios are
simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of
existing positions, alternative financing and hedging.

During 2018 and 2019, the Group's borrowings at variable
rates were denominated in United States dollars (“USD"),
RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD").

AEEZNXAREIBRERTEER - &
TRBXRREHRZBITBEEAKERE R
ERENEER - BH/RIBDNERTE
MIRTTIF KATIROR © IE B RHE 2 RITHE
EEAKEERS AR EEFNERR - 5/
AEERITEREZFE - REHUBEREK
BiFE28 4 ER - REMIAE R A DT EF
KRR AREMBZEER TR - G
ABRE REFENER - HHrRA
B ELE AN o

R2018F K20195F A » AL B FE A
KHENEFTIAET - ARBTETRE

fiL °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
Flﬂaﬂ[]lal HSK TaCtUrS (continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
(continued)

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 50 basis points
as at 31 December 2019 in bank borrowing interest rates
for bank loans with all other variables held constant would
decrease/increase the profit after taxation by approximately
RMB8,831,000 (2018: 50 basis points; RMB7,982,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most of
the transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange rate risk
arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

The Group's assets and liabilities, and transactions arising
from its operations primarily do not expose to material
foreign exchange risk, other than certain trade receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and derivative financial
instruments denominated in USD and HKD, details of which
have been disclosed in Note 20, Note 23, Note 28 and
Note 19, respectively. The Group’s assets and liabilities are
primarily denominated in RMB. Other than approximately
15% (2018: 20%) of the sales are denominated in USD
and certain expenses in HKD, the Group mainly generates
RMB from sales in Mainland China to meet its liabilities
denominated in RMB.

Further depreciation or appreciation of the USD and the HKD
against the RMB will affect the Group’s financial position and
results of operations.

If the RMB had strengthened/weakened against the USD and
the HKD by 100 basis points as at the respective balance
sheet dates, profit after taxation would increase/decrease
by approximately RMB6,143,000 (2018: RMB6,833,000)
and increase/decrease by approximately RMB7,168,000
(2018: RMB4,837,000), respectively, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gain/loss on translation of USD and HKD
denominated bank borrowings, trade receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
FlﬂaﬂClal HSK TaCIUFS (continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because
certain investments held by the Group are classified as FVOCI.
As the amount of such financial assets is not material to
the Group, the exposure to price risk is considered to be
insignificant.

The Group purchases turpentine as one of its major raw
materials for its manufacturing process, and is exposed to
fluctuation in its market price. The Group does not use any
derivative instruments to manage its economic exposure to
the change in price of raw materials.

Gapital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet, plus net debt.

The net debt amounts and gearing ratio at 31 December 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

(e)

3.2

B BF B 5 R P o

BEERERE

B 7 R B R 2= ()
ERER

HAAEEAFETREDBIERAAE
Bt ARG NG EMEE - AL
EESBRAEFERER - ARNZETH
BEZZBRHAEEMTLIAEKN - #E
REREERSTERX

AEBERBREAMEAREEERENTE
REE - AEHETISERRE - AREL
EEREMAITETAUEREMEHER K
B2 RERR o

BxEREE

ARENESEERR  RREAKEE
BELE  ARBRREHLERM AR ME
aFEARENE  AREFRENER
RERBIUREE S °

RTHEFIABELGE  AREJES
AEN FRERARSEE - [ARERS K
HEARRE - BITHRIHEEEENRE
&% -

HEANEMAR % AEEMNAAGLL
RERHENR o b RRBEBFREN
REANGE - BEHFERBER(ERES
HEEABKRMAINOEEKIEANER)
RERERASEFEY - REARR 1)
(EHEERBRMI) - INFEF

E20185E K2019F12 A31H » FEH
CERBEXRNT

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
I @400
Total borrowings (Note 28) HEE (M5k28) 1,715,750
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) g : B& NI &S EBW(HiE23) (897,903)
Net debt FE 817,847
Total capital FERZ N 2,913,686
Gearing ratio BEX 28%
I 0200
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
GaDHal HSK maﬂagemem (continued)

There is no significant change to the gearing ratio during the
year.

Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities. The Group does not
have this type of financial instruments.

o Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices). As at 31 December 2019,
the Group recognised outstanding interest rate swap
contracts with fair value of RMB1,172,000 as liabilities
(2018: 455,000) and RMB276,000 as assets (2018:
RMB106,000). The Group recognised outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts with fair value of
nil as liabilities (2018: RMB1,061,000) and nil as assets
(2018: RMB1,310,000).

o Level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs). As at 31 December 2019, the Group had FVOCI
of RMB200,000 (2018: RMB200,000) that are within
this category.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation technigues maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates.

If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If one
or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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3.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
Fa” Va|Ue BS“maHOﬂ (continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o The fair value of interest rate swaps was calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments.

0ffsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group does not have any financial assets and liabilities
that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements for the year.

GRITICAL AGCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

3.3

3.4
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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GRITICAL AGCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to changes
in market conditions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting period. During the year ended 31
December 2019, a provision for impairment of inventories of
RMB764,000 (2018: RMB1,641,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement within ‘cost of sales’.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of intangible
assets based on an assessment of the recoverability of
intangible assets. Provisions are applied to intangible assets
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be recoverable. The identification of
impairment requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of intangible
assets and provision for impairment in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

EStimated loss allowance for trade receivanles

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 3.1(a).

Estimated userul lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to market conditions.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives or it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

CRITICAL AGCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries is subject
to management’s estimates that the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries.

Research and development costs

Critical judgment by the Group’s management is applied
when deciding whether the recognition requirements for
development costs have been met. This is necessary as the
economic success of any product development is uncertain
and may be subject to future technical problems at the
time of recognition. Judgments are based on the best
information available at each balance sheet date. In addition,
all internal activities related to the research and development
of new products is continuously monitored by the Group’s
management.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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0. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. DERE R

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as BERERRERARERPITES - $i17
the executive Directors. The executive Directors review the EEERAEBRNIREATERRF D
Group's internal reports in order to assess performance BEER ERECAERBEENTES
and allocate resources. Management has determined the NEBREEE EED D

operating segments based on the internal reports provided
for review by the executive Directors.

The executive Directors consider the performance of the BITESNEMAEBTREEES - 1T
Group from a product perspective. The executive Directors EERETENRAE - BB - TEME
assesses the performance of the operating segments based HE AR ZF I (TEBITDA W —IBRT =
on a measure of adjusted EBITDA. This measurement basis BT GG E NIRRT - WWIHFTEHEE
excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the TEELEDMILTHERIOZE
operating segments such as write-off of property, plant and Pl - BERREME  BEEE
equipment, provision for impairment of intangible assets, BERE  ZEEARFELEERKSE -
legal expenses and net exchange gains/losses. The measure ZIAGTEE NN BAEEE RS WS
also excludes the effects of share of profit of an associate MITABRFENTE - FEBWATX L
and net/losses on financial instruments. Interest income WERSEESE - ARERESEHRE
and expenditure are not allocated to segments, as this type B EEAREEIR AR A J B 75 2B P e
of activity is driven by the central treasury function, which )0

manages the cash position of the Group.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December HZE2019F12A31ALEFEZHHER
2019 is presented below: 25T -
Scent Specialties
and Taste Naturals and Others Unallocated Total
B2 m
FERKE RAREY REA RAE k)

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR AR®TT AR¥TR AR®TR

Revenue WA 1,649,071 456,380 317,359 2,422,810
Adjusted EBITDA K FAEEBITDA 318,592 65,966 60,087 444,645
Depreciation of property, WE - BEREE

plant and equipments hE (32,105) (32,105)
Depreciation of FREEEZIE

right-of-use assets (4,607) (4,607)
Write-off of property, plant ME - BEMEREZ

and equipment WEME (11,592) (11,592)
Amortisation b (17,795) (17,795)
Provision for impairment of BV EENERE

intangible assets (5,000) (5,000)
Net losses on financial SR T ABEFESE

instruments (1,528) (1,528)
Net finance expenses HBERIE (42,254) (42,254)
Others Hith (4,944) (4,944)
Share of profit of an associate  JEfb Bt & Ui zs 1,638 1,638
Taxation RIE (97,418) (97,418)
Profit for the year FEFE 318,592 65,966 (215,605) 229,040
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

0. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conrmuen)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

aFMBREMNE

. DEER (&)

HZE2018F12A31BILFEZHBER

2018 is presented below: 25T -
Scent Specialties
and Taste Naturals  and Others  Unallocated Total
B tEm

FERKE RARED REAM AAE k]

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTTT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETR

Revenue ON 1,470,695 444,954 282,568 - 2,198,217

Adjusted EBITDA KHEEBITDA 359,055 67,344 49,302 - 475,701
Depreciation of property, mE¥  BEREHEZ

plant and equipment e - - - (37,263) (37,263)

Amortisation b - - - (19,654) (19,654)

Net losses on financial SRIAEERE

instruments - - - (2,632) (2,632)

Net finance expenses BISE R FE - - - (100,309)  (100,309)

Others Hit - - - 40 40

Share of profit of an associate  JE{GE & U s - - - 966 966

Taxation WA - - - (101,558) (101,558)

Profit for the year FEFE 359,055 67,344 49,302 (260,410) 215,291

Liability related to contracts with customers EBREFEEHNZEE

As at 31 December 2019, contract liabilities included in
accruals and other payables amounted to RMB2,330,000
(2018: RMB423,000).

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities.

R2019F12A318 » st AT ERRE
EMRZEHBESARK2,330,000
£(2018 : AR¥423,0007T) ©

TERFIRRE A B AP BB dras
EEHA0E ENERZE -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning of

the period

SEARYIA MBEER
HY B RERRUIA

1,212
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (conminuen)

In presenting information of geographical segments, segment
revenue from external customers by continent is based on the
destination of the customer. The Group’s FVOCI and deferred
tax income assets are not considered to be segment non-
current assets for reporting. The Group’s derivative financial
instruments are not considered to be segment total assets for
reporting. Other total assets are allocated based on where the
assets are located. The Group's deferred income tax liabilities,
borrowings and derivative financial instruments are not
considered to be segment liabilities for reporting as they are
managed by the Group’s central treasury.

7EER =)

REFHERE - SMNEEEF D BUIAT
RIBEF AN - MO BIDEITHE -
AEENZEAABEFARMEE REZ
CREEMEEMSHEEINER /DG
FRBEE - ARENITESBTATHK
BRNIBEERE - HWEELEBENIRE
EREMOE - ANKENECHERA
B ERETEERTIAHPRESHE
B2 B TRE SO RAE -

108

Asia
(excluding
Mainland Mainland North Others/
China Europe China) America  Unallocated Total
M
(HEIRE Heh/
HER B B EEM i) g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
2019 20195
Revenue WA 2,048,989 123,286 113,412 102,102 35,021 2,422,810
Non-current assets FnBAE 1,594,578 - 1,916 5,107 1,601,601
Total assets REBE 4,580,818 3,395 94,900 5,383 4,684,496
Total liabilities BEET 387,355 722 12,424 1,988,201 2,388,702
2018 20185
Revenue WA 1,767,849 137,220 148,902 110,032 34,214 2,198,217
Non-current assets ErEEE 1,173,795 - 213 - 5,089 1,179,097
Total assets EERE 4,081,182 6,412 107,361 - 6,505 4,201,460
Total liabilities BEESE 293,255 529 14,971 - 1,796,866 2,105,621

Capital expenditure comprises additions to right-of-use
assets (Note 15(b)), property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
and intangible assets (Note 17). No geographical analysis of
capital expenditure is presented as substantially all of the
Group’s capital expenditure was incurred in respect of assets
located in Mainland China.

Revenues of RMB283,981,000 (2018: RMB223,429,000)
and RMB180,857,000 (2018: RMB180,705,000),
respectively, are derived from two major customers. These
revenues are mainly attributable to the segments of Scent and
Taste and Naturals.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ #ia B £ B AR A F
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6. OTHER INCOME AND (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 6.

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B B SRR B ot

#m— F

Httr AR (B518), i

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AR¥ETFTT
Income on government grants BT R 2 as 3,967 2,529
Derivative financial instruments (Note a): #7448 T A (Mia) :
— Net realised losses -~ BEREBEFE (732) (2,493)
— Net fair value losses —DRFEEE (796) (139)
Net foreign exchange gains (Note 14) SEIE H S (BI5E14) 1,973 7,908
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - WEREHBZEE
plant and equipment (Note b) (Ff3ED) (32 (365)
Write-off of property, plant and ME - BB M RE 2 HMiE
equipment (Note c) (Ft3EC) (11,592) -
Others HAth (4) (239)
7,201
Notes: izt -

(a)

Net realised losses on interest rate swap and foreign exchange
contracts amounting to RMB732,000 (2018: RMB2,493,000).
The net fair value losses on interest rate swap amounting to
RMB547,000 (2018: RMB388,000) and the net fair value losses
on foreign exchange contracts of RMB249,000 (2018: net fair
value gain of RMB249,000) had been recognised, respectively,
which amounts are included in the respective year end balances
of derivative financial instruments as set out in Note 19.

(b) The Group recorded a loss of RMB694,000 (2018:
RMB365,000) on disposals of property, plant and equipment as
the Group was not able to sell them at their carrying amounts.

() During the year, the Group restructured part of a plant

resulting in write-off of certain property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB11,592,000.

(a) CERIEERRINEARZCERE
BFBEAARKT732,0005C(2018 © A
R #2,493,0007T) - B #W#ER 2 F X
EHRERZARBEFERABARE
547,0007t (2018 : A R # 388,0007T)
MINEERZAARBEFERABARE
249,0007C(2018 : AR EEF W= A A
R#249,0007T) B 5t AKTZE19FRE T4
CRMITARBFEREHRNA -

(b) AEBEEINEFEEABLEYE BE
Rk AUREEZEEERES
B8 A R#694,0007T (2018 : AR
365,0007T) °

(0 RAFER AREEZ—HHOEE

5 BE TYR - BE K& M
AR¥#11,592,0007T °

Annual Report 2019 fff —Z—nE4% 109



Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
B 0 I B R I A

2018
RMB’000
ARETTT

(88,090)
(13)

(69,478)

(157,581)

1. NET FINANCE EXPENSES 1. B ERFEHE
2019
RMB’000
ARBT T
Interest expense: MEEH

— Bank borrowings —RITEE (101,567)
— Government loans —BURER =
— Lease liabilities —HEAE (340)

Net foreign exchange losses on RbE G FIE H 1R
financing activities (Note 14) (PiFEE14) (26,860)
Finance expenses M5B A (128,767)

110

Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying
assets

B AEREEEMOBE

44,758

(84,009)

Total finance expenses FELI R =2
Finance income sl s

— Interest income on bank deposits

— SRITIF A8 U ek

41,755

Net finance expenses

BB RFE

(42,254)
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
B 0 I R I A

8. EXPENSES BY NATURE 8. BMES I ZHX

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Amortisation of prepaid operating TEfTAE & M E R IE 8

lease payments (Note 15(a)) (fF5E15a) 899
Depreciation of property, ME  WE - REITE

plant and equipment (Note 16) (fsE16) 32,105 37,263
Depreciation of right-of-use assets e AEEE ZITE (MFE15(0))

(Note 15(b)) 4,607 -
Amortisation of intangible assets R A EHE(ME17)

(Note 17) 17,795 18,755
Provision for impairment of M EERERE(ME17)

intangible assets (Note 17) 5,000 -
Provision for impairment of inventories 7SR EE & (FizE22)

(Note 22) 764 1,641
Employee benefit expense (Note 9) B EREAIFZ (FIF9) 76,564 63,469
Cost of inventories (Note 22) FERA (FsE22) 1,753,003 1,504,523
Transportation costs EEIRA 23,179 21,831
Operating lease payments LERERS = 5,382
Expenses related to low value and REREHHEHEZER

short-term leases 2,462 -
Auditors’ remuneration ZEA B &

— Audit service — FETIRTS 2,220 2,156

- Non-audit service — IEFA RS = -
Utilities and electricity charges WRELE) S oK E & 35,700 35,566
Subcontracting expenses MTEHA 16,477 18,881
Other PRC taxes Efth AR B A 18 20,204 29,389
Consumables and supplies MR E R 5,875 4,142
Bank charges RITE A 5,089 4,427
Other expenses HEmE A 46,352 42,432
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing 5 « & R T ISHEER A

costs and administrative expenses RATHRER 2 4% 2,047,396 1,790,756
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BrET 75

9.

e

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9. EEBAMAX
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
I 400
Wages, salaries, other allowances and T& - ¥4 - 2 REY
benefits in kind Tz 58,082
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIRS KA — EREE G2
plans (Note a) (FfisEa) 5,387
63,469
[ I

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans

12

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its
employees in Mainland China, which is a defined contribution
plan. The Group and its employees contribute approximately
12% to 14% and 0% to 8%, respectively, of the employees’
salary as specified by the local government, and the Group
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its
Hong Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s
and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned retirement schemes
was approximately RMB6,569,000 (2018: RMB5,387,000).
As at 31 December 2019, the Group was not entitled to
any forfeited contributions to reduce the Group's future
contributions.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

aFMBREMNE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (conminuen) 9. EEEABE X »
Five highest paid individuals b)) AZ&xEHFHA
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest AEBGSFMORMCA T BFEEA
in the Group include four (2018: four) directors whose (2018 : UML) EE « M PIHF BITEARTI 3R
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 36. FOMIE36 Bk © 20198 R H g —1fL
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2018: one) (2018 + —fi) ATHIE BT :
individual during 2019 are as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Basic salaries, other allowances and EXH ¢ - HEREWFIE
benefits in kind 1,068
Retirement benefit — defined contribution 3R{KIEF| — & 28 EET2)
plans 15
1,083

The emoluments fell within the following band:

I EFHME T A S HER:

Number of individual(s)

AH
2019 2018

Emolument band E= |
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 75%1,000,001TE

75 1,500,0007T

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid to the directors or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or as compensation
for loss of office.

HZE2018F K2019F12A31B ILFE -
WERRAAAFREEHZAGHERTALTE
NEMME - (ERRSIEINE 2 S 1E
AR 1E -
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
& b B 75 ¥k B ot

10. SUBSIDIARIES 10. Fff & 2 F

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 AT AR2019F12 A31 B X EWE QA
December 2019: BB E
Proportion of
Proportion of Proportion of  ordinary shares
ordinary shares  ordinary shares held by
Place of incorporation and Particular of issued  directly held by held by~ non-controlling  Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital parent (%) the Group (%) interests (%) place of operation
ARAIEER HEAFERRE  MAREREN  BEERMER
£# EELREH BRiTRAGE KEBRILA EERMA SANEERMA TTEBROERY
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited British Virgin slands S$95,000 100% 100% = Investment holding, in Hong Kong
ABRAEE 95,000%7 RERR R
Doingcom International Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 - 100% - Trading of fine chemicals, in Hong Kong
R AR &k 710,000,000 EERANER BE
Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland Ching RMB190,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals in
EFt S ERRAT {Note b) F#190,000,0007C Mainland China
hER () FEREERANZR
hEMH
Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Mainland China R\B50,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing of fine chemicals
(o, Ltd. (Note ¢) ARE50,000,0007 in Mainland China
ERmBERRERAR hER (K EERAER EAL
ERmE2ERNA(H) Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% - Saleof fine chemicals in
Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited ~~ (Note d) AR%20,000,0007 Mainland China
(Note ) AR (i) HERRLER Pt
EFaRnARAR (M) Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of food addifives
Xiamen Doingcom Food Co,, Ltd. (Notee) AR%20,000,0007 and seasoning
(Note &) hEA(ite) FEREERRFNER

SRk PR

Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals in
Development Co., Lid. (Note ) AE#20,000,0007 Mainland China
EFPRERERARLA R R 3k TEREERAER
hEM
ENEREZTIARAT(MEa)  Mainland China U5§10,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals in
Zhangzhou Huiyou Enterprise (Note g) 10,000,007 Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (Note 3) hER(Hig) FTEREERMIER
hER
Rl RAESSERAA(HHa)  Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 55% 45%  Sale of forestry products in Mainland China
Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading~~ (Note h and ) AEE10,000,0007 HEMFER MEMY
Co., Ltd. (Note a) hER(HENR)
RIRILIOEM)ERAR (Hika)  Mainland China RMB21,580,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals in
EcoGreen Chemicals (ZhangZhou) (Note ) AR21,580,0007 Mainland China
(o, Ltd. (Note 3} hE A (3H) EERHERAN SR PEME

14 EcoGreen International Group Limited f/ s B E£EHRE A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

10. SUBSIDIARIES (conrvuen)

Notes:
(a)
(b)

The English names are for identification purpose only.

Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. is sino-foreign owned
enterprise established in Xinmen, Fujian Province, Mainland
China for a term of 40 years up to October 2037.

Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co., Ltd. is sino-foreign
owned enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province,
Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to July 2024.

Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited is a limited liability
enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland
China for a term of 20 years up to June 2024.

Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Ltd. is a limited liability enterprise
established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a
term of 20 years up to October 2031.

Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. are wholly
foreign owned enterprises established in Xiamen, Fujian
Province, Mainland China for a term of 30 years up to July
2026.

Zhangzhou Huiyou Enterprise Co., Ltd. is wholly foreign owned
enterprise established in Changtai, Zhangzhou, Fujian Province,
Mainland China for a term of 50 years up to April 2057.

Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd. is a limited
liability enterprise established in Chuxiong, Yunnan Province,
Mainland China for a term of 30 years up to March 2037.

EcoGreen Chemicals (ZhangZhou) Co., Ltd is a limited
liability are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in
ZhangZhou, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a term of 20
years up to December 2032.

During the year, the Group disposed of 45% of the equity
interest in then Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co.,
Ltd, a then wholly owned subsidiary, to an independent third
party for a consideration of RMB10,000,000. The Group's
equity interests in the subsidiary was reduced from 100% to
55%. The difference between the consideration receivable
and the carrying value of net assets disposed of in an equity
transaction with non-controlling interest resulted from the
change in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control over the subsidiary amounting
to approximately RMB5,035,000 was recognized in equity and
an increase of approximately RMB4,965,000 was recognised in
the non-controlling interests.

B BF B 5 R P o

10. Bt B 2 =) (@)

BeE
(a)

(b)

)

(9)

(h)

(0]

)
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REABEMHES -

EFFHEEER AR BEFREANME
BEEEMMANZFIINEELE &£
HIABA0F - HZE20375F10A 1t »

B HEMBEERARAEFEHA
WEEEEPIMK L ZPINEERE -
KB R20F - £2024F 71k ©

EfFHE SER AR AR EANLE
BEEMMALZERAR - KEHA
204F » B202456A 1k °

EFTHRAARAT BN EAMLE
BREEPITRIZEBRAR  KLHA
204F + £2031F10A Lk ©

EFFREXEZRRERARAINGEE
¥ EHRBEAMBEREE B WAL
KEEIB30F - £2026F7HLE ©

BINERBXBRAR /S —HENEDR
¥ EREAmEEEEMNT REHK
N R BRS04 - B2057F4 A0 ©

RIEFIEMEE S ER D RN R A
EHEAREMKIZBRAR @ K&
/304 - B2037F3 ALt °

Rt TOEM) BRA R AR B A
BRABEMKILIZERAR @ KEHA
204F » £2032412A 1k »

FR - AEEBEREZENBRAREE
FIEHEZ S HER A R H45 % H#E 1
ET—ZRBIYFE=Z REAARK
10,000,0007T ° A& B R B A Bl &I AR
HEHR100% M E55% o EEFE4 4 M4
HORERZH  BRARERLENF
EERABAZENEZEERSARASE
T2 BT B 22 A AP A G R A B i ¥ 5%
MEBAREHERNEMERN - HAR
#5,035,0007c E R AiEm - HARE
4,965,000 B MR A FEEAR 4 a5 2 18
e
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

1.

116

A BrET 75

e

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

BHErRE

At 1 January ®1A1H
Share of profit of an associate FEAG B & R B D EE

At 31 December M®12A31H

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
7,730

966

8,696

Details of the associate as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
as follows:

Place of business/ Particulars of
country of registered and
incorporation paid up capital
IMALER =K
£ E45050

Name of entity

REBRFRBALIBERLA  Mainland China RMB30,000,000
(fizta)
Wuhan Geyuan Fine B Ak AK#30,000,0007T

Chemicals Co., Ltd. (Note a)

Note:

(@)  Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. is a private limited
liability company and there is no quoted market price available
for its shares.

In the opinion of the directors, the associate is relatively
immaterial to the Group and therefore no summarised
financial information of the associate was disclosed.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to Group's interest
in the associate and there are no contingent liabilities of the

associate itself.

Details of loan to an associate and amount due to an
associate are disclosed in Notes 35(b) and 35(c), respectively.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ 14 B £ B AR A 7

BREARE mMekEs (MHELARRE) HRE

2019 K 20184E12 A31 HELE
MEHNT

REM

Percentage of
ownership interest
(Held by a Subsidiary)  Method

Measurement
Principal activities

TERHK
2018

25% Equity Manufacturing of
fine chemicals

A TERASm

BRE
(@ HEBRBALIERARAR/LABR
BEERAR - EROIETSHRE -

EERRBEHHKRELTEAN - BIR
BHBLENREFBEMELRE -

AR ERE ZXE@EEEEH&%E{E
N EAR G B EEMHABE

B (BB K T & 5 MO RE 15 D B R BT
5E35(b) & M sE35(0)H FE ©



12. TAX

Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

ATION

aFMBREMNE

12. $ I8

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current tax WBEIE
- Mainland China corporate income —ARFERHANMDERER
tax for the year 87,390 87,288
— Under/(over) provision in previous year —ARIEE Vst (Z12)2
PR HE 396 (511)
Total current tax RABRIAREE 87,786 86,777
Deferred income tax (Note 29) BEEATS A (MI5E29) 9,632 14,781
97,418 101,558

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Hong Kong profits tax
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

Mainland China corporate income tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to
Mainland China corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2018:
25%). Xiamen Doingcom Chemicals Co. Ltd. was granted
the High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE") status in
October 2018, being valid for 3 years, and therefore is entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15%.

Overseas income taxes

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted
from Cayman Islands income tax. The Company’s subsidiaries
established in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated under
the International Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin
Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income tax.

Withholding tax

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Withholding taxes are
payable on dividends distributed/to be distributed by those
subsidiaries and an associate established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

BEE

ERNEHR

AR AN 6% B 3 M8 A2 B B I 1S Sk R BB AR
BRI+ B 3 48t 2 78 5 A58 F 1 8K
i

(a)

R Bt £ 3 PR SHE

B A S 2 BB A BB 1R 25%
(2018 : 25% ) 2 TR = i B A b1 2
FriS%i - 20184108 » EPIhiH{L &
BERARVER TS RMAENMAL -
BHA3E - F AR EER R15%EH -

(b)

BINREB
ARARBEHERSARAEHRSHS
AR AERRERAR - AL EH
RHMFREFSHEN - ARFERE
B RSP 2 B A R TO AR B B B
LRESBEBEHERRDEEMAL - Bt
BROHMNRBRLESMEH

(c)

KIMFFEHR

BB BE - B2008FE1A1B#E - BF
Bl 5 BL4a NI E A AR B EIZ10% /Y
HERINABR - ZELHE2008F1 A1
HBLER - WEAR2007F12A31HZ
BRTEAFBNDER - R EEINE
WEEEMEE ERF IR E ¢+ BIF]
KAREMNRMASHEE - KEBE
ABRIEE10% - Bt - B52008F1 A1
A NEERBERIEFROKTBER
A) R B A B BT E A F R RERIEE AT 1S
=N

(d)
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12 TAXATIUN (CONTINUED)

118

The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities and the reconciliation is as follows:

BIE a2

A S5 T SR B B RS B BT - SRR
A G R R E A I TR R 2
MEANRRHEGEZR - HEMT -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Profit before taxation B B B F)E 326,458 316,849
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates R R M E@EA 2 8 iR
applicable to profits in the respective FTEZFIE
countries 73,190 81,493
Income not subject to tax EERT A I (0£:7)) (2,610)
Expense not deductible for tax purposes A& f1FiH) & A 2,609 4,620
Under/(over) provision in previous year  LARISEE D5t (Z18) 7 FR1SH 396 (511)
Withholding tax on dividends of the PRC B[t B AR ZREEBE T2
subsidiaries RINPRISH 10,000 14,200
Tax losses for which no deferred tax RERRELETHIBEEDN
asset was recognised e R 12,005 5123
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FRER AR ISEE
tax losses (757)
Tax charge MExH 101,558

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.4% (2018:
25.7%). The fluctuation in the weighted average applicable
tax rate arose mainly because of the change in the relative
profitability of the companies within the Group.

Included in the tax losses as at 31 December 2019 was a
loss of RMB79,054,000 (2018: RMB36,077,000) that will
expire during the period from 2020 to 2024 (2018: 2019
to 2023), while other losses of RMB45,207,000 (2018:
RMB40,323,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.
The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses has not been
recognised as it is not probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unutilised tax losses can be
utilised, or the amounts attributable to specific subsidiaries
are insignificant.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ #ia B £ B AR A F

HAMEF M ER224% (2018 ¢
25.7%) o MEFHEAR X LT KEE
B2 RN AN EE A A B H R B 2 R g 2
8L o

MR2019F 12 A3 B Z MK E B BEE
B AR #79,054,0007C (2018 : AR
36,077,0007T ) © & E AR 2020F =
20244 (2018 : 20194 % 20234 ) [
fE % - E BB A R % 45,207,000 7T
(2018: AR#40,323,0007T) BI| o] ££ R Hf
EEE o NI B AR RB FER AT
INABAZ RISEBEE  ZeEHE
RIKT B AR RiE - Bt B E1E
ZIEER AR R W ERERALR o



Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

aFMBREMNE

13. R K=

H AR
SREAUGE TR ERBRAA DA E
ZFIE - BAENE BT ERR G T
BB -
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

MERBRARREEE

Weighted average number of ordinary 2217 & @R &0 10 5 &

shares in issue (thousands) (Fzt)

Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) GMRERIZ (FIRARE)

229,949 215,291

775,059 775,059

Pl e 27.78 Centsoy

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The dilutive potential ordinary shares of the Company mainly
comprise the share options. The number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options
less the number of shares that could have been issued at
fair value (determined as the average market price per share
for the year) for the same total proceeds is the number of
shares issued for no consideration. The resulting number of
shares issued for no consideration is included in the weighted
average number of ordinary shares as the denominator for
calculating diluted earnings per share.

—
HE

BEBRNERRMAENEENEEEE
PRt a1 - IRIRE AT B A IR
B HEE - ARA A EEREE S ER
T2EREERE TREZBTHRNEKE
EERBRITE T BREREZETHR
MBERERREZRAABEGEZRESF
FHMSERMNE) BTLRSHRKE
BITWARNBRT @ AIEHBEHTHRMN
ZERBHN - E - FTHERTHROHK
BN ERRBRE N —B

RAERFT B TSR SR AN D& -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (conrivuen) 13. BRI 2
Diluted (continued) s (&)
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBETTT

Profit attributable to owners of the FHEBREBRARRHEEE

Company 229,949 215,291
Weighted average number of ordinary B 377 & @A INE

shares in issue (thousands) (F3H) 775,059 775,059
Adjustments assuming the exercise of  BRRERIEHITEFAZ(F5H)

share options (thousands) - 68

Weighted average number of ordinary 5125 i&i# 58 2 F 60 L @R
shares for diluted earnings per share In#EFHE(FET)
(thousands) 775,059 775,127

Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) &&# & = (G ARE) PLlvl ey | 27.77 Centssy

14. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS 14 BEX(BX) W& F
#

The exchange differences (charged)/credited in the EAHRBERD (BRE) BELmER =5
consolidated income statement are included as follows: BREETIEEA
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETTT

Other income and (losses)/gains, net HAp A\ K& (E518), Wz — F 5
(Note 6) (Ki&Ee) 1,973 7,908
Net finance expenses (Note 7) FOSER(MR7) (26,860) (69,478)

(24,887) (61,570)
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(@) Land use rights

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book
values are analysed as follows:

aFMBREMNE

5 FHAEEEREES
&
(a) T Hbfsh FA#E
7SR B3 -+ 8 P 4 2 A 2 HE R A

REMEHR - REKEFEIN
LU

RMB’'000
ARETT
At 1 January 2018 2018%F1A1H 40,323
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease TET 4 & THE FIB R #E
payments (Note 8) (F5ES) (899)
At 31 December 2018 2018F12H831H 39,424
Reclassification on adoption of HKFRS 16 HA(ERBYBEREER ) E165%
EMHME (39,424)
At 1 January 2019 and at 31 December 2019 7201941 H18 &%2019412H31H -
(0) Leases ) HE
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) EHEESEBRTERN
balance sheet £
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20194 20194
128318 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBT T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office and warehouses MREREE 7,447
Land use rights + s A 39,424
46,871
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current T Eh 3,371
Non-current JER B 4,076
7,447

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the

2019 financial year were RMB1,413,000.

E2019 N E - FREER
EEN T ARI1,413,000
ﬁo
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 15. EABEEERHEESR

(CONTINUED) E (&)

[D] LBASES (continued) (D) fﬁ%(%)
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) ORI ERTEINESE
income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the EHFIERTEEESEN S
following amounts relating to leases: IR

2019
RMB’000
AR®TR

Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FAEEEZFE (KME8)

(Note 8)
Offices and warehouses WAENBRE
Land use rights T fE AR
Interest expense (Note 7) B I (MFE7)

Expenses related to low value and short- (XK fGEIFHE 2 & A (M5E8)

122

term leases (Note 8)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was
RMB6,431,000.

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and warehouses.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 5 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ #ia B £ B AR A F

2019F A EMIR© R KA
B AR#6,431,0007T °

AEENEEFHUARE
LEBMEE S E

AEEEERBRAENRE
E-HEARBEAREAZS
5B E MR

HEGRERRBERIE R
EER - HREa8E IR
RGN - R THBEARE
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. ¥ HWERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
Plant and  office furiture Motor Construction-in-

Buildings  machinery and equipment vehicles progress Total
HEME
£ Gk

BT HREREE Rt RE EEIR &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTT ARETRT  AR¥TR ARETRT  AR¥T:R

Year ended 31 December  #Z20185

2018 12A3NALEE
Opening net book amount FUEEEE 103,819 117,978 7,175 475 63,656 293,103
Additions NE 64 3,882 2,967 640 671,198 678,751
Transfers B - 6,494 - - (6,494) -
Disposals HE (365) 9) (24) - - (398)
Depreciation (Note 8) FE(MHS) (5.261) (28,825) (3,001) (176) - (37,263)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 98,257 99,520 7117 939 728,360 934,193
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A831A
Cost R 155,326 445,962 26,559 5,610 728,360 1,361,817
Accumulated depreciation ZHE (57,069) (346,442) (19,442) (4,671) - (427,624)
Net book amount FaFE 98,257 99,520 7117 939 728,360 934,193

Year ended 31 December  EZ20195

2019 12AMBLEE
Opening net book amount ~ E¥REFE 99,520 728,360 934,193
Additions RE 4,506 424,670 430,944
Write-off (Note 6) Hsa (Bsze) (11,592) (11,592)
Disposals HeE (3,001) (3,687)
Depreciation (Note 8) WE(If38) (23,765) (32,105)
Closing net hook amount ERREFE 65,668 1,153,030 1,317,753
At 31 December 2019 ®2019F12A431A
Cost AR 154,544 404,801 27,320 4,827 1,153,030 1,744,522
Accumulated depreciation 2HFE (62,101) (339,133) (22,125) (3,410) - (426,769)
Net book amount FEEE 92,443 65,668 5,195 1,417 1,153,030 1,317,753
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

124

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s buildings and buildings under construction,
totalling RMB120,792,000 (2018: RMB119,525,000) are
situated in Mainland China with lease terms of 50 years up to
December 2047, December 2048, May 2053, April 2054 and
December 2064, respectively.

Depreciation expense of RMB21,316,000 (2018: RMB26,950,000)
has been charged in ‘cost of sales’ and RMB10,789,000 (2018:
RMB10,313,000) in ‘administrative expenses’.

An analysis of construction-in-progress is as follows:

16. ¥  BERZR®E =

REEBBFREREBFEHAR
# 120,792,000 7t ( 2018 @ A R ¥
119,525,0007T ) + R H A H % 1R+
- AEAHS0F - HRIR2047F12
A 20484128 - 205345H - 205444
AX2064F 12 AER °

MEEREHP ARK21,316,0007(2018
£ 1 AR#26,950,0007T) 7 [ #5ERK A |
RS ds - T AR % 10,789,000t (2018
£ 1 AR%10,313,0007T) Bt AT 1T &
Al o

FERTRESTAT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Construction costs of buildings EFREMRAR

Cost of leasehold improvements and FHEWMERE - BEMEEEMRA

plant and machinery

28,349 21,268

1,124,681 707,092

1,153,030 728,360
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. B EE

Product
development
cost
EmBEBEALR
RMB'000
AREET T
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31HLLFE
Opening net book amount HYERmEE 122,499
Additions NE 57,131
Amortisation (Note 8) B (MT5E8) (18,755)
Closing net book amount HARRBREF B 160,875
At 31 December 2018 A2018%F12H831H
Cost 4N 294,310
Accumulated amortisation ST (108,913)
Accumulated impairment 25 RE (24,522)
Net book amount AREFEE 160,875
Year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019F12A31HLEEE
Opening net book amount YRR E FE 160,875
Additions NE 54,534
Amortisation (Note 8) B o8 (FIsE8) (17,795)
Provision for impairment (Note 8) B (FT3E8) (5,000)
Closing net book amount HRBEEEE 192,614
At 31 December 2019 720195 12H31H
Cost A 348,844
Accumulated amortisation Y (126,708)
Accumulated impairment Z2:tREE (29,522)
Net book amount BREFE 192,614

Note: FiaE -

(a) Amortisation of RMB17,795,000 (2018: RMB18,755,000) (@) AR #17,795,0007T 2 #£5(2018 © A
is included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income R%18,755,0007 ) FE & HFBERFETA
statement. [SHERAIA o

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision for (b) HBE2019F12A3NALFE  BREE
impairment of intangible assets of RMB5,000,000 (2018: nil) BB B A AR #5,000,0007T (2018 -
had been included in ‘cost of sales” in the consolidated income E)EFASHFIBERZ SHERAIA ©
statement.
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18.

(2]

126

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Glassification of financial assets at fair valug
through other comprenensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income comprise equity securities which are not held for
trading, and which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial
recognition to recognise in this category. These are strategic
investments and the Group considers this classification to be
more relevant.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprenensive income

18.

()

(b)

BEAAEBETTAHAM
GENBZEMEE
EAREBESTAEMES
WmzemEEZDE

BAnBEFARMMEAREZEHEE
BRYIFFIEEEZBRARZS » RAKE
BRI HER R T Al 0 5% S R LR
AINER - ZEBHFRBEKE - RAE
BRSO BERAMMK -

EQJ{EJAA1 é
WaRZemEELZD
2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT

Unlisted equity securities Ik TR ANFE 5
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

aFMBREMNE

19. STE€mI A

2019 2018
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE 8E& BE B8&E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TF T AR®T T ARETT AR¥ETTT
Current portion: TMENERD -
Interest rate swaps (note a) F|=F % (MfzTa) 106 455
Forward foreign exchange = EJSMES (A
contracts (note b) (P 3ED) 1,310 1,061
Total et 1,416 1,516

(a) Interest rate swap contracts

The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts to
mitigate the exposure to the interest rate risk associated with
the Group's borrowings.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding
interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2019 were
RMB1,607,464,000 (2018: RMB1,310,871,000), for
which RMB411,598,000 (2018: RMB1,310,871,000) and
RMB1,195,866,000 (2018: nil) were entered into for the
purpose of managing LIBOR and HIBOR floating rates
respectively.

The fixed interest rates of swap contracts under LIBOR and
HIBOR range between 2.40% and 2.82% (2018: 1.90% and
2.82%) and 1.73% (2018: nil) respectively.

(b) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group entered into some simple forward contracts. The
total notional amount of these simple contracts remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2018 was RMB47,453,000.

() MRS L

AEBR MR A G AREAKEE
BEFTARANEER

R2019F 128318 ' MALENFEE
BmERMRESREAARE1,607,464,000
7L (2018 : AFR#1,310,871,0007T) @ &
AR #411,598,00075 (2018 : AR
1,310,871,0007T ) FA 7 &1  fm 28R 17 [R] 2
FEZHFIE - & AR%1,195,866,0007T
(2018 : &) AR E R B BRITRZERSF
EhFI=E o

R2019F 128310 » MBBITRERB
RBEBRTAERENTEEMNES A
2.40%%2.82% (2018 : 1.90%%2.82%)
$1.73%(2018 : £&) -

(b) & HAINE & [A]
AEBT VU ZMHEERPER - ZE5BHE
AREN2018FE12A31B T ATK Z A
ESHEA LA AREAT7,453,0007T °
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS RECEIVABLE  20. FE W BR =X I FE W R 4%

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBET T

Trade receivables FEURBE 3L 1,003,874 947,745
Bills receivable EWER 1,178 418

1,005,052 948,163
Less: Loss allowance W SRR (5.673) (5,211)

999,379 942,952

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and bills receivable EURERNENEEROEEEAAREE
approximate their fair values. HE -
The credit period granted by the Group to its customers is REBHETFTHEEZEZEEH —MKR60E90
between 60 and 90 days. For certain customers with good Ko HRERMHEERLNER  £8R
credit history, an extended period up to 180 days is allowed. FFET180EMEEH - BUIR L EL
The aging analysis of trade receivables and bills receivable is ZEZRESTOT
as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

0 to 30 days 0%£30K 224,560 238,906
31 to 60 days 31£260K 201,455 201,838
61 to 90 days 61£290K 149,044 179,321
91 to 120 days 91£120K 173,054 157,649
121 to 150 days 121E150K 132,425 92,695
151 to 180 days 1512 180K 97,705 64,248
181 to 365 days 181£365XK 22,936 9,531

Over 365 days 365K 3,873 3,975

1,005,052 948,163
Less: Loss allowance B IR (5.673) (5,211)

999,379 942,952
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

(CONTINUED)

The loss allowance for trade receivables and bills receivables
as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss allowance as
follows:

aFMBREMNE

20 BRI R B R &
(%)

HE12A3MBMEWERMEREED
EEBERBUNEBRBEEZHE o
—|T :

Opening loss allowance at 1 January

Net loss allowance/(reversal of loss JE U BR B B
allowance) for trade receivables SHE /(O ) %458

R1ATRMBIERRE

Closing loss allowance at 31 December

M2 A31BEIREIEEE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
6,741

(1,530)

5,211

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 3.1(a)
set out the details about the calculation of the allowance.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables and
bills receivable are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEERC(EEM B REERD) FIWRIA
TAEIAZEERRETNE - SiRHREEE
BIEHEE - ARG ERENFAEEMN
FAPTEE3. 1(a) ©

74 52 5 0 MR M SR R OB T L A
TR &SRB :

Renminbi

AR
US dollar 7T

=

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETTT
939,846 857,032
59,533 85,920
999,379 942,952

Information about the loss allowance of trade receivables
and bills receivable and the Group’s exposure to credit risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in
Note 3.1.

BERRYES MR R 2 BEEERA
SEEERBRHA - SNEHTE R R R
Rz ER A RH 31 ER] -
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. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER REGEIVABLES

21. MR K H b & UK

2019
RMB’000
AR®T T

179,582
32,116
124,588
24,906

361,192

(32,116)

Prepayments for purchases of raw BERATEMNK
materials

Prepayments for construction-in-progress £ 32 T2 &+ 5k

Input value-added tax recoverable AU B3 TR IS (B A

Others HAh

Less: non-current portion B FEmENER D

Prepayments TR

Prepayments and other receivables a3 R H ) P U R
— current portion — mEED

329,076

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their
fair values and are mainly denominated in RMB.

22. INVENTORIES

130

22.

HisERHEmEEER

B ARMIE -
FE
2019

RMB’000
ARET T

126,902
762
76,053

Raw materials R
Work-in-progress eS8
Finished goods B oh

Less: Provision for impairment B B

203,717
(7,116)

196,601

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB1,753,003,000 (2018:
RMB1,504,523,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision
for impairment of inventories of RMB764,000 (2018:
RMB1,641,000) has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
consolidated income statement.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ Hia B £ B AR A T

2018
RMB’000
ARET T

201,667
27,820
12,218
23,722

265,427

(27,820)

237,607

REEMRERE

2018
RMB’000
ARETTT

163,591
934
87,605

252,130
(6,352)

245,778

BRARY KA THERAN |2 FERA
A AER#1,753,003,0007T(2018: AR

1,504,523,0007T) °

R2019F 12 A31BILEFER  AR¥
764,000 2 7 EREREH (2018« AR
#1,641,00070) BEFF A G HFIERZ [ 34

ERAIA o



Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM

BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

aFMBREMNE

2. CEBZRITER

BHBRTER BT
RETEEY

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Pledged bank deposits BRI IRITIER
Structured bank deposits EREIERITF

Other short-term bank deposits H R ERITIE R
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEED

85,664 66,090
503,000 598,000
10,734 31,650
958,126 897,903

1,557,524 1,593,643

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated in
the following currencies:

MREEMZ|ITFR - BHIRITER - R
SRR EBYNRAEAEEENER
mr

Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollar BT
US dollar e
Euro B 7&
Others Hh

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
1,532,609 1,567,984

5,986 4,292
17,766 19,658
1,161 1,691

2 18
1,557,524 1,593,643

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate on
pledged bank deposits was 1.48% % (2018: 1.67%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits of the Group have an
average maturity of 198 days (2018: 182 days).

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate on
structured bank deposits was 3.67% (2018: 3.43%) per
annum. The structured bank deposits of the Group will
mature in 360 days (2018: 180 days to 360 days).

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate on other
short-term bank deposits was 1.35% (2018: 2.2%) per
annum. The other short-term bank deposits of the Group
have an average maturity of 183 days (2018: 355 days).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank deposits,
and cash and cash equivalents balances of approximately
RMB1,532,241,000 (2018: RMB1,567,984,000) are deposited
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of such
foreign currencies denominated bank balances and cash out
of the PRC are subject to the relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

M2019F12A318 » 2B ZR1T7F
RZEBRFEESF1.48% (2018 :
1.67%) - AEBEBRBZETERZF
HEHAA A198KX(2018 : 182:K) °

MR2019F12 8318 @ £BHERTERZ
BERFERATE3.67%(2018:3.43%) ©
AEBEEERITEREMR360K(2018
180K E360K )& FIH] »

M2019F 12 A31H @ EEHIRTF
RZBEBRFESETF1.35% (2018 :
22%) c AEBEZ EMEHRITERZ T
HE|H R A183X(2018 : 355:K) °

M20196F 12 A318 » AEERRT
TR BEeRBLeEEYESROAR
# 1,532,241,000 7T ( 2018 : A R ¥
1,567,984,0007T ) 917 B H BY 35 A A 4R
17 - AR ENLH LB EINE - A
Ko iE e SMNE ST B R IRTT 4B SR AR B [E
FRE - FEESE AR BT AR AR K HNE B A
BREARE -
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23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM
BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH

23.

EQUIVALENTS (conrmuen)

At 31 December 2019, bank balances of RMB85,664,000
(2018: RMB66,090,000) have been pledged to banks to
secure credit facilities granted to certain of the Group’s

subsidiaries.

The cash and cash equivalents are not exposed to material

credit risk.

24,
OPTIONS

(a) Share capital - Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

SHARE CAPITAL, PREMIUM AND SHARE

24,

(a)

EEBZBITER -
EHETER - BE
FBEEEEY =)

2019412 4318 + AR¥85,664,000
7£(2018: AER#66,090,0007T) 7 $R1T71F
B FARKREA RN EB R LHE R TR
RITERSE SRS 2 M o

RehBReFEMLREEANEERER

B -
BRAE  RERBERE
B —-FREEIETZ

=Lkt

Nominal value

Number of of ordinary
shares shares
Authorised: EE RBEE EZEREE
‘000 HK$'000
F&t BT T
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018  2018F181H -
and 31 December 2019 2018512 A318 &
20194 12H31H 2,000,000 200,000
Fully paid Value of
shares ordinary Share
51N shares premium Total
Fully paid: L& BHOBE ZEREE ROSBE ast
‘000 RMB'0O00 RMB'000 RMB'000
Tit ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTET
At 1 January 2018, #2018F1H1H »
31 December 2018 and 2018412 A31H &20194 12
31 December 2019 H31H 775,059 75,380 341,876 417,256
(0) Share options () BBAE

Share options are granted to directors and to selected
employees. The exercise price of the granted options is
equal to the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant or the average closing prices of the shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant, whichever is higher. The share options would vest
progressively from the grant date to the third year after
the grant (the vesting period) provided that the relevant
employee remained employed by the Group. Share options
are exercisable up to 10 years after the grant date. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle

the share options in cash.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

24. SHARE CAPITAL, PREMIUM AND SHARE 2

(D)

UPTIUNS (CONTINUED)
Snafe OUHOHS (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and

(b)

4. A -

(#%&)

i gibgr

aFMBREMNE

m B R B R E

(%)

RITERNBERAESR B BB MNETFST

their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FEENEHNT -
2019 2018

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option share options option  share options
BRERE BRE BREBRE e
7@ #A 11668 L
HKS$ ‘000 HKS '000
BT Fat BT TFat
At 1 January and 31 December ~ ®M1A1BK12A31H 1.70 24,777 1.70 24,777

Out of the total 24,777,000 (2018: 24,777,000) outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2019, 24,777,000 (2018:
24,777,000) share options were fully vested and exercisable.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

R2019F 12 8318 » HARTITE R EEIRAE
4887 524,777,000(2018 = 24,777,000)

[

H h 4 F 24,777,000 ( 2018

24,777,000) D Z R EE T2 B A

FITlE -

EFERERITEBRENZIRHAMITEE

following expiry dates and exercise prices: U
Original Adjusted
exercise exercise
price per price per

share option share option

BREBRE BREBRE

Expiry date B A FRriTEE - KRRIEE
HK$ HK$

BT BT

(Note)

(FizE)

30 November 2024 2024%11 4308 2.24 1.70

Annual Report 2019 /) —Z— L4 4 %

2019 2018
Number of Number of
share options share options
(thousands) (thousands)
BREZE B EE A
(F3t) (F&)
(Note) (Note)
(BE) (iE3)
24,777
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24. SHARE CAPITAL, PREMIUM AND SHARE 2. RA& - mEREBERE

OPTIONS (conmivuen) (%)
B /L 125 L

(D) Share options (continued) () BBRXHE (@)

Note: The issue of bonus shares was completed on 13 August 2015 and  Fi&E - ALRXE 1770201548 513 H K% 201647 F12H
12 July 2016. Pursuant to the respective terms of the share option T IRIBBIRERT B 2 IR MARITRBR
schemes, adjustments were made to the exercise price of the share EzROITEERKAAZETKARETE
and the number of shares entitled to be subscribed for under the DRMEHREE -
outstanding share options as a result of the completion of the bonus
issue.

25. OTHER RESERVES 26. HfttfE s

Capital
redemption Share
Capital Contributed  Statutory reserve options
reserve surplus reserves (Note d) equity  Currency

(Note a) (Note b) (Notec)  RAEE reserve translation
RagtE  EHRS  iELEe fite BhRE reserve Total
(H&a) (H&tb) (Hzko) (Wd)  RAgE  EXRE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2018 R2018E1518H 492 9,500 133,551 m 10,774 75 155,103
Currency translation differences B ZE - - - - - (6) 6)
Transfer from retained earnings BEFEE - - 373 - - - 373
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018F 12318 2 &% 49 9,500 133,924 m 10,774 69 155,470

At 1 January 2019 R201951A18 133,924 10,774 155,470

Currency translation differences EX£% =
Transfer from retained earnings ~ RERFER 542 542

Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019E128318 2668 134,466 156,003
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25. OTH

Notes:

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

ERRESERVES({ONHNUHD

Capital reserve of the Group mainly represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the share exchange on 16 February 2004
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor.

Contributed surplus represents the capital contribution from
an executive Director and an indirect substantial shareholder
of the Company, as part of a reorganisation exercise of the
Group.

According to the articles of association of the relevant
subsidiaries established in Mainland China and the Mainland
China rules and regulations, Mainland China subsidiaries are
required to transfer not less than 10% of their net profit as
stated in their annual financial statements prepared under
Mainland China accounting regulations to statutory reserves
before the corresponding Mainland China subsidiaries can
distribute any dividend. Such a transfer is not required
when the amount of statutory reserves reaches 50% of
the corresponding subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
statutory reserves shall only be used to make up losses of
the corresponding subsidiaries, to expand the corresponding
subsidiaries’ production operations, or to increase the capital
of the corresponding subsidiaries. Upon approval by resolutions
of the corresponding subsidiaries’ shareholders in general
meetings, the corresponding subsidiaries may convert their
statutory reserves into registered capital and issue bonus
capital to existing owners in proportion to their existing
ownership structure. As at 31 December 2019, the amount
of statutory reserves of Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd,
Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd and Xiamen
Doingcom Biotechnology Co. Ltd. had reached 50% of its
registered capital and accordingly, no further transfer to its
statutory reserves has been made.

The capital redemption reserve relates to the cancellation of
the Company’s own shares.

B BF B 5 R P o

25. Hif@# M )

GEE

(a)

(b)

Annual Report 2019 fff —Z — h 4%,

AEEE RN FHIERE2004F2 16 H
EAFBERBEARRDOEERBAR
A RBITE E M D 2 BRAEER
EEE o

ERBBREARB —BRITESRERK
TERRAEESHEELZHER -

BERATEAMR L EBHBARZ
AR Z 240 A AR R R B A AR B R R
Bl - RERMHE A B ELETERES
B e st ER R E 2 FEM SRR
IR ER T DLR10% « BASKE AT
2 FARFARE - BEEAELES
ERAKNE QR EME LR 0%E - Al F
ABREEE AT ARSERN ARKHE
ERMBAREE EAEHEKBAR
AEBRESIENEEANBRARIRAE - &
BEEENBEARIZRRERRASH
BRFERE - BIBEBHBARTEE
ERAEEEAIMER - WHIRBAR
RZBEEREELBLHIBETAR - B
201912 A31H + EfFH(EBHRA
Al BEFFREEEEGRARKREM
FHAERRERARMNEAEATESE
ERFMEAR50% » B I 8 B e o

PR O A B S AN A B Z BRI B R -
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26. TRADE PAYABLES AND BILLS PAYABLE 26 ENRRRENRE
2019 2018
RMB*000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Trade payables FERTEBRX 73,098 55,190
Bills payable FERT IR 249,824 173,632

322,922 228,822

The aging analysis of trade payables and bills payable based ENERRENEEREEEBHZRER
on invoice date were as follows: DTN -
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30K 46,044 71,482
31 to 60 days 31E60K 107,171 49,395
61 to 90 days 61290k 82,358 40,357
91 to 180 days 912180k 79,459 60,334
181 to 365 days 181E365K 4,580 1,533
Over 365 days BiE365K 3,310 5,721

322,922 228,822

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables and bills AR E R BRI R =R AV BRI A
payable are denominated in the following currencies: TEEBREN
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETTT

Renminbi AR 318,841 220,519
US dollar ET 4,081 8,303

322,922 228,822

The carrying amounts of trade payables and bills payable EAERKEMERRMEEEQAAEE
approximate their fair values. & -
Bills payable are secured by pledged bank deposits. R RBEARITERIEER -
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27. AGCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
& o B 75 R I ot

Payable for construction costs and
property, plant and equipment
Contract liabilities
Output value-added tax payable
Accruals for administrative,
selling and marketing expenses

N

2019
RMB’000
ARET T

R ZERAREEY X -
55 N s s e AN 2 B 32 6,887
BHEaE 2,330
e S5 IRIE A 6,305

FEET1TH - HERTISHEEM
31,243

46,765

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

BATHEEREN

2019
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Renminbi AR 39,241
Us dollar ey 157
Hong Kong dollar ABIT 7,367
46,765
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other AEBH
payables approximate their fair values. ERNRBEBEE -

21 BsTERAREMEN

2018
RMB’000
ARBETT

7,127
423
18,893

29,663

56,106

AEENEERRAMENROEDS

2018
RMB’000
AR¥ETT

48,339

7,767

56,106

FEETE A R EMEN R REER
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28. BORROWINGS 28. 5 &

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 546,590 743,743
546,590 743,743
Current BIHAR ED
Government loans BB - 670
Bank borrowings RITIEE 1,351,189 971,337
1,351,189 972,007
Total borrowings EEHEEE 1,897,779 1,715,750
Terms and maturity of the government loans are as follows: BB SR B B RN T
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ETTT
Repayable on demand, non-interest BNEREE - 28
bearing 670
At 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings were M2019F 128310 ' AREEBERER
repayable as follows: B -
Bank borrowings Government loans
RITEE BREX
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥KTT AR®TR AR®TE
Within 1 year —F AR
or repayable on demand BERER 1,351,189 971,337 670
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWEF 380,300 413,965 -
Between 2 and 5 years WMEERF 166,290 329,778 -
1,897,779 1,715,080 670
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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e=d .
28. BORROWINGS (conrivuen) 28. B & (@)
The borrowings were repayable, without taking into account Rt RIZZREEMNIER - EERERE
the repayable on demand clauses, as follows: U
Bank borrowings Government loans
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARBT T

Within 1 year —F AR 1,344,047 958,112 670
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF 387,442 424,252 -
Between 2 and 5 years WMEERF 166,290 332,716 -

1,897,779 1,715,080 670

The effective annual interest rates at the balance sheet date REEHZERFEFERDOT :
were as follows:

2019 2018
Government loans HIFE R \[ei=1 el Not applicable
TEA i A
Bank borrowings RITIEE 5.18%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair BEME -
values.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in ERMETESZE A 5| &S AR
the following currencies:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Renminbi AR 503,092 466,466
US dollar EV" 678,036 767,700
HK dollar B 716,651 481,584

1,897,779 1,715,750
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28 BORRUW'NGS (CONTINUED)

28. B E (»)

140

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

AEEE TIRERERBE

2019
RMB’000
ARET T

234,185
140,641

Floating rate N

- expiring within one year ——FREH

— expiring beyond one year ——F LA EEIE
Fixed rate ER

- expiring within one year ——FREH

— expiring beyond one year ——F LA EEIH

419,695

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has provided
corporate guarantees to support banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,248,578,000 (2018:
RMB940,357,000).

Bank borrowings and bills payable of RMB873,336,000
(2018: RMB737,318,000) are supported by corporate
guarantees provided by the Company and bank
borrowings and bills payable of RMB1,274,267,000 (2018:
RMB1,151,393,000) are supported by cross guarantees
between subsidiaries.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the balance
sheet dates are as follows:

2018
RMB’000
ARBT T

207,659
20,590

34,393
17,681

280,323

MR2019F12A31H » AR AR F R L&
B AT ARM1,248,578,0007T(2018 :
AR #940,357,000 ) HUSRTTRLE R E

fEH R RIHER -

RITERRENEEARS73,336,000
7t (2018 © A R ¥ 737,318,000 7T ) A
RATESRE  ROTEFRESEEA
R #1,274,267,000 7t (2018 : A R #&
1,151,393,0007T ) A BT B A Rl B ZEHEAR ©

REER  ARENERENXEHRE
WEFEE B HAMAENRRIT

2019
RMB’000
ARET T

6 months or less
6-12 months

61 ASIAT
6-121E A

1,660,349
237,430

1,897,779

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ Hia B £ B AR A T

2018
RMB’000
ARBT T

1,480,724
234,356

1,715,080
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 IESEFTE B TR

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when EBREEAITRNEERHIEEERE
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets HBKaERE  BREMSHEENS
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income EF R A — KA - RIRIEERE TS
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following EENMBEBEEREE ZEREHRIER—
balances, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown BBREANBENECEHEEREEN
in the consolidated balance sheet: DITAT -
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Deferred income tax assets to be BB 1216 A & Uk B A EE
recovered after more than 12 months /& E 4,889
Deferred income tax liabilities to be i 121E A & Uk ol # E i
settled after more than 12 months FrIsfHias (89,250) (79,600)
The gross movements in the deferred income tax assets and EIEFEHREAERENAESEMNT «
liabilities are as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARBT T

At 1 January Mm1A1H (74,711) (59,930)
Charged to the consolidated income EEHFAEERR

statement (Note 12) fEae (KI5E12) (9,632) (14,781)

At 31 December M12A318 (84,343) (74,711)
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (conrivuen)

142

Deferred income tax assets

29 IEEFTBHIE &)
REFTEME E

Provision Tax loss Total
B B EE A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETIT ARBET T
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1H - 5,470 5,470
Charged to the consolidated EEEEET bR
income statement - (581) (581)
At 31 December 2018 and M2018F12A31H K
1 January 2019 201951 A1H - 4,889 4,889
Credit/(charged) to the B (ER)E 6
consolidated income statement  FjE3&k 750 (732) 18
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318 750 4,157 4,907

Dererred incame tax liapilities

EXFEMAE

Withholding tax

At 1 January
Charged to the consolidated income
statement &

R1A1H

EattMBERA

At 31 December M®12HA31H

RINFAEH
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTTT
79,600 65,400
9,650 14,200
89,250 79,600

At 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB 149,448,000 (2018: RMB106,027,000) available for
offsetting against future profits, and a deferred income
tax asset of RMB4,157,000 (2018: RMB4,889,000) has
been recognised in respect of such losses. No deferred
income tax asset has been recognised in respect of a total
of RMB27,631,000 (2018: RMB15,959,000) due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ Hia B £ B AR A T

R2019F 12 A318 - A"EEBEAXHH
TR TS B 18 A R %5 149,448,0007T (2018 :
AR # 106,027,000 7T ) 7] A 7 K 5 7K 28
A Mt EEIEERRELEHREH
BE ANREMA157,0007T (2018 : ARK
4,889,0007T) ° AR AE RS A 78
A - B RERE HARKEE27,631,000
7£(2018: AR#15,959,0007T ) K IELE Fff
SHEE -
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (conrivuen) 29.

peferred income tax iabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2019, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB168,741,000 (2018: RMB150,109,000) has not been
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries as the Company controls the dividend policies of
these subsidiaries and it is not probable that these subsidiaries
would distribute these earnings in the foreseeable future.
As at 31 December 2019, unremitted earnings amounted to
RMB1,687,413,000 (2018: RMB1,501,086,000).

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30.

Financial
assets at
amortised
costs

ERERA
AEZEREE
RMB’000
NS

At 31 December 2019 ®2019612A318
Financial assets as per balance sheet ~ REEEEERNEREE
Trade and other receivables excluding YR TR R A IR

non-financial assets (TafksaaE) 1,018,935
Amount due from a related company JE M B 7y ZUR

(Note 35(c)) (Hr335(c)) 39
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) BEAZROIFR(NE23) 85,664
Short-term bank deposits (Note 23) BERRTER(NE23) 513,734
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) BeRESEEM(MH23) 958,126
Financial assets at fair value through other &2 7 BE:H AR iAW

comprehensive income (Note 18) ZERAE(M18)

Derivative financial instruments (Note 19) #7442 R TA(FtiE19)

Total @t 2,576,498

AP RRATE

EEMBHIE o)
RIEFTEREE @)

MR2019F 12 A31H - BEEREMIEH S
BB A R AR SR BE RSB A RIEA
REORKT S RERFBEEL SR
REBIARFE T M E A 7 KK E R F
AT AT R R I TS BERN E B 08
RIEEFS M EE AR 168,741,000
£ (2018 : AR®150,109,0007T) ° A
2019F 12 A3V EMARERIKZS £ A
R # 1,687,413,000 7t (2018 : A R #&
1,501,086,0007T) °

TR TR (&REH)

Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value

fair value  through other
through the  comprehensive
profit & loss income Total
NARER
TEEEEE  RAAEEA
FABEN  HitRakEz
SHEE EREE @zt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTR ARET T

1,018,935

39
85,664
513,734
958,126

200
276

2,576,974
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

144

(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2019 R2019512A4318
Financial liabilities as per balance sheet REZEEEBXRNLRER
Borrowings (Note 28) R (A5E28)

Trade and other payables FERBRAR R EA T

excluding non-financial liabilities (TRfEHERERE)
Amount due to a related company FEHRRRE 77 50A
(Note 35(c)) (FH3E35(0)

Amount due to a director (Note 35(e)) e —ZZ=FIE(FE35())
Derivative financial instruments (Note 19) #7448 T E(}{zH19)

Lease liabilities (Note 15) HEEEM5)
Total Foh

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ Hia B £ B AR A T

30 EMIT R (REHR) &

Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Hit
REBHRAE
ZHiteMEE
RMB'000
ARETR

1,897,779

347,004

2,309
26

5,231

2,252,349

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through the
profit and loss
AR EEHE
BHEETA
BRINEREE
RMB'000
ARET R

Total

a5t
RMB’000
ARETR

1,897,779
347,004
2,309

26

1,172
5231

2,253,521
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30, TR T B (RER) »)

(CONTINUED)
Financial
Financial assets at
Financial assets at fair value
assets at fair value through other
amortised through the comprehensive
costs profit & loss income Total
WAREE
FEAEEY  RAREBEHA
RAENA STABRN  EfteNEs
SEZEREE tREE SREE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2018 2018128318
Financial assets as per balance sheet ~ BEEEEBERHERMEE
Trade and other receivables excluding FEYER TR R A IR
non-financial assets (T REEeBEE) 962,274 - - 962,274
Loan to an associate (Note 35(b)) Een e (F3E35(0) 3,000 - - 3,000
Amount due from a related company e B 7 2R
(Note 35(¢) (H235(0) 967 . . %7
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) BEAZFOFR(NE23) 66,090 - - 66,090
Short-term bank deposits (Note 23) REBIER(HE23) 629,650 - - 629,650
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) BeRkReFEM(Ma23) 897,903 - - 897,903
Financial assets at fair value through other &A% BEzHA
comprehensive income (Note 18) EtGalns eRAE
(BtzE18) - - 200 200
Derivative financial instruments (Note 19) #7144 BT A (fti19) - 1,416 - 1,416
Total @ 2,559,884 1,416 200 2,561,500
Financial
Other liabilities at
financial fair value
liabilities at through the
amortised cost profit and loss Total
Hit  NUArEEHE
RE BN AGTE BEEFHA
ZEMERARE Balemnat @ar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®EFT ARETFT AREFT
At 31 December 2018 RW2018F12A31H
Financial liabilities as per balance REEEEERNEMAR
sheet
Borrowings (Note 28) a3 (Fiz28) 1,715,750 - 1,715,750
Trade and other payables T ERA R E M T 3K
excluding non-financial liabilities (TREHEHERE) 254,355 - 254,355
Amount due to a related company FE{ BB 5 308
(Note 35(c)) (Pi7E35(c)) 644 - 644
Amount due to a director (Note 35(e)) fER—& =518 (HizT35(e)) 30 - 30
Derivative financial instruments TS BT EMF9)
(Note 19) - 1,516 1,516
Total st 1,970,779 1,516 1,972,295
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AP HRRATE

31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cashgenerated from operations

3. WEREHR

) REEBFEE2RE

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
— Taxation (Note 12)
— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 15)
— Loss on disposals of property, plant
and equipment (Note 6)
— Write-off of property, plant and
equipment (Note 6)
— Amortisation of:
— Land use rights (Note 15)
— Intangible assets (Note 17)
— Provision for impairment of
intangible assets (Note 17)

— Provision for impairment of inventory

(Note 22)
— Net loss allowance/(reversal of

loss allowance) on financial assets

(Note 20)

— Interest income (Note 7)

— Interest expense (Note 7)

— Share of profit of an associate
(Note 11)

— Net fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments
(Note 6)

— Exchange differences

2019
RMB’000
AR¥T
FEFE 229,040
FAEIEE
—BE(HEE12) 97,418
¥ BERREZINE
(H5%16) 32,105
—FRAEEEZINE
(Mf3£15) 4,607
—HEWE - BEREZEZ
SRl 694
—WE - BB KRR M
(Mf3E6) 11,592
— AT &IE
— b f AR (MIEE15)
—mREEME17)
—EWEERERE
(PF5E17)
—~GFERERE
(PF5E22)
— S BEEBIERIE(EE)
SFEE(MisE20)
462
— F B (B EE7) (41,755)
— M B (KMFE7) YA L)
—ZEBEN BG5S
GEARD) (1,638)
—TE2MITANAAERE
FEEB K (KisEe)
—[ERER

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Changes in working capital:
— Inventories

— Trade receivables and bills receivable

— Prepayments and other receivables

— Amount due from a related company

— Amount due to a related company
— Trade payables and bills payable
— Accruals and other payables

LEBESEHA LKL

433,489
BELED)
—f %
— MR AR

48,413
(56,889)

— FRA R B L A IR (92,041)
— B YR BAEsE 7T SRR 928
— FES AR 7T 5K IR 1,665

—ENERRENRE
— BB REAME R

94,100
(9,570)

Cash generated from operations

REXBEE RS

420,095
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2018
RMB’000
ARBT T

215,291

101,558

37,263

899
18,755

1,641

(1,530)
(43,433)
74,264

(966)

139
46,202

450,448

(63,847)
(418,270)
(13,014)
1,448
(43)
38,566
14,812

10,100
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31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conminuen) 3 BHERER

(D) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () BMEEBELHNEIE © ¥
activities BEINT :
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREAAEEAREFDELEBEE
arising from financing activities. £

Liabilities from
financing activities

MEEHEL A6
Amount Borrowings Borrowings
due to due within due after Leases
a director 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
Eff— —FHR —F0%
0 HnER HBNEYR HEAE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR

Asat 1January 2019  742019F1A1R 972,007 743,743 1,715,780

Recognised on adoption of F#E B E KRS &8

HKFRS 16 F165EHER = = 7447 7,441
Cash flows Ben (51,575) 207,760 (3,629) 152,552
Acquisition - leases BE-HE - - 1,413 1,413
Foreign exchange ERRE

adjustments 12,995 6,465 19,460
Other non-cash movements E i JE £ £5) 417,762 (411,378) 6,384

As at 31 December 2019 742019%12A31A 1,351,189 546,590 1,903,036

Liabilities from
financing activities

RERDEL AR
Amount Borrowings Borrowings
due to due within due after
a director 1 year 1 year Total
JER— —FHUR —F Lk
EE508 ZIERROERS ZIERROfERS Ch

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT ARRTE ARBTR

As at 1 January 2018 20181818 30 764,914 449,385 1,214,329
Cash flows BRI - 44,003 400,593 444,596
Foreign exchange adjustments E X 5% - 10,573 35,629 46,202
Other non-cash movements Hib3EIE 2 &8 - 152,517 (141,864) 10,653
As at 31 December 2018 #2018%12H31H 30 972,007 743,743 1,715,780
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32. DIVIDENDS

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK4.8 cents per share, totalling approximately of
RMB33,992,000, is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. These consolidated financial statements do
not reflect such dividend payable.

32.

x;§\
RENERITZREBEFAE L - BREE
F2019F 12 A31 B I FE R RER S
FR4.88A - & XL ARYES3,992,000
TC o WA G BT IS R I 4 = R otk R AR

5 o

I

Interim dividend paid of HK1.7 cents
(2018: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend of HK4.8 cents
(2018: HK4.1 cents) per ordinary share

(2018 = 1.55841)

(2018 = 4.1784l)

Bk HIR S R E A1 7 A

BURR IR B S E @ik4 881l

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFR ARBT T
11,893 10,146
33,992 27,183
45,885 37,329

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. AARAE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant M2019%12 4318 AEEMETME
contingent liabilities (2018: nil). AZHRE[RE(2018 : &) ©
34. COMMITMENTS 34. &I
(@) Capital commitments (a) B AR
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Capital commitments contracted but not RiREHRERENRE TN
provided for at end of the reporting BRI -
period are as follows:
— Construction-in-progress and —ERIREUEDE  BE
property, B
plant and equipment 236,236 132,929
— Product development projects —EmA%ETE 31,430 24,260
267,666 157,189
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34.

(D)

39.

Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

COMMITMENTS (conminuen) 34.

Operating lease commitments (b)

The Group leases various office, warehouse and land use
rights under non-cancellable operating leases. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On
renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
assets for these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases, see Note 15(b) for further information.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases were as follows:

aFMBREMNE

AEIE 2

A5 = T #) AR

AEERETAHENEEHERATEEE
MAZE  REMLHMERE BEAEDT
RIBIGRIR - THARIGRANAERTHE - ERTRS -
B i AR & 5K -

H2019F 1 A1BE  BREHAMNEEER
B AEBEEHRELEREMNERE
BE  H2EWE15(b)BESHEBEHE
e

RIETARESLEHE  ARKEAEHN
PR

2018
RMB’000
ARETTT

Not later than 1 year T B —F

4,196

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years iR —FENHEARE 4,243

8,439

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.

The Company is 36.6% owned by Marietta Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) which is owned by
Mr. Yang Yirong.

Sales and purchases 0f goods and Services (a)

The following transactions were carried out with related
parties:

BELE RS
KNAAEZ36.6%EH —MHERBELE
BEZABEZBEEEMERL 2 A5 —
Marietta Limited# A °
EmAkRFZHEEREE
BB EITHR AT ¢

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

Sales of goods to a related company EmiHE T

Sales of goods to an associate EmiEE THER

Purchase of goods from related B PRiE B R
companies

Purchases of goods from an associate &G HL B @E:

Subcontracting fee payable to an JEfTHE & T 2 T
associate

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions were
carried out in the normal course of the Group’s business, and
conducted at terms mutually agreed by the respective parties.

EEXZRAR - LR H TN AEEIETEXEK
BEREL - WIREHRBZIRFETT -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrmuen)

(D)

150

A BrET 75

% & P ot

39.

Loan [0 an associate

AR Z »

Hzg o {_-H—_ s

Loan to an associate BEHER

Jb ‘= 15 B
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
3,000

As at 31 December 2018, the loan to an associate was
unsecured, bearing interest at the rate of 6% per annum
and was repayable on 14 April 2020. The loan has been fully
repaid by the associate during the year.

Amount due from/to arelated company

M2018F 128318 » xHE HERAE
- FREEB6% @ WEMN2020F4 8
14BEE  ZERERFREHEE -

e, {5 B Bk 75 TRIR

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT AREFTT

Amount due from a related company e Ui 2 967
Amount due to a related company JE 1~ R RS

— an associate —B 644

As at 31 December 2019, the balances are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand.

M2019%12H31H -
RBERENRER -

FAREEN - R

Key management compensation (1) FsEE 8
Key management includes directors (executive and non- AREEAEBREES(RITESEIERN
executive) and the senior management with their details TEZ)RERBEAR BRAACHEF
as set out in the “Biographical details of directors and BEWHENFRIEZTREBRAERE |—
senior management” section of the annual report. The BN o MEAREEABZNIEREES RS
compensation paid or payable to key management for BB SEN BT
employee services is shown below:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBFT
Salaries and other short-term employee #i& kKAt E EE BRI
benefits 11,620 12,517
Retirement benefit RIRREA
— defined contribution plans — FREHERETE 166 197
Total “5 11,786 12,714

EcoGreen International Group Limited ff/ Hia B £ B AR A T
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

aFMBREMNE

——
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrmueny  35. BAERE 5 X 5 ()
: e
Amount due to a director (6) T —RLEZFHIE
The details of the amount due to a director are as follows: Bt —UESBRENFBOT :
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREF T
Mr. Yang Yirong BRI A 30
The amount due to a director is unsecured, non-interest BN —UESCHEAERT - RENEAE
bearing and is repayable on demand. EEREE -
Z
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36. EEMFZNER
Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments (a) EFRITHRAZHS
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration HE2019F12A31BLLFE SRES
of every director and the chief executive is set out below: RATBAEE BB T ¢
2019 2018
Salaries  Retirement Salaries  Retirement
Director’s and Director's and benefit
fees  allowance Total fees allowance scheme Total
Name of Director 2R EEHe HeREW BHEANHE @ EEHe  HeREE RAETEE FaH
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TR ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Yang Yirong HRE
(Chairman and President) (FEFEH) 622 1,811 29 2,462
Mr. Gong Xionghui BiE 369 833 27 1,229
Ms. Lu Jiahua ExE 369 920 15 1,304
Mr. Lin David Ying Tsung HRR 312 794 - 1,106
Mr. Lin Zhigang MR 369 541 27 937
Mr. Han Huan Guang BEN - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BuEHITES :
Directors:
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen iR 214 " - 225
Professor Xiang Ming (Note (1)) 18R (FiH&E()) - - - -
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HER 214 11 - 225

Note (i): Professor Xiang Ming has been appointed as an INED of the

Company on 9 April 2019.

During the year, no discretionary bonuses, remunerations
paid or receivable in respect of accepting office as director
and emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director’s
other service in connection with the affairs of the Company
or its subsidiary undertakings were paid or made, directly or
indirectly, to the directors; nor are any payable (2018: nil).

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year

ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

BaEG) © MBI EM2019F4 A9R W T
MARNABBMYIFRNITES -

AEE GEARIFAERAESREMHE
T REMECEZT-BMHEKD
ekt EBARRREMBARDEDN
ERSHR R E b T AR 1 S A< S U0 B
EHIEMENFK(2018 : ) °

HZE2019F12A31MHIEFE - WESEW
EEMEE (2018 : &) o
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(D)

31.

162

(CONTINUED)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
Denefits

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services were paid
or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any
payable (2018: nil).

Gonsideration provided to third parties for making
available dirgctors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services (2018: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entitles with such
directors

As at 31 December 2019, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors, their controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors (2018: None).

Directors” material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

None of the directors of the Company and their connected
entities had a material interest, directly or indirectly, in any
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
or is a party that subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2018: None).

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across the region. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. As at the date on which these financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Group was not
aware of any material adverse effects on the financial
statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak except that
the construction of the Group’s new plant in Gulei Chemical
Industrial Park may experience certain delay.
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36.

37.

ESNANEZMER o

& FIR KR K B B AR A

AEE - SEERAFRAEFRARK
B LRI EERG N FORHRHE

AR B (2018 : ) °

NERREZERBRE=
XA 2 B

MERERHESREMA TE=EMK
Bk =F& A st &= 5 RS m WA AR
B(2018 : &) o

E%M%%‘%%%%%
Z%l&ﬁ%%%%

ﬁA = ’fAG Ey /E

L BTk
,\/)\ \/ﬁﬂ)ﬁ%z/éf*#

M2019F 128318 - ERES - BE
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38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTOF 38. A AR EERE X

(a) Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December  (a) HE209F12A3H IERAA
2019 AMEERER
2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mk AR¥T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in and amounts due  RHB AT ZIEE KELK
from subsidiaries Sy =N ] 401,974 401,974
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW B AR RIE 1,260,220 1,133,470
Prepayments TEfTR - 45
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 276 106
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREZEEY 6,715 4,608
Uizl | 1,138,229
Total assets BMEE 1,669,185 1,540,203
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners EXEBRAQATEEE
of the Company
Share capital A& A 75,380 75,380
Share premium PR A= (B 341,876 341,876
Other reserves H A (b) 102,426 102,426
Retained earnings RE&F () 63,011 42,203
Total equity Mg 582,693 561,885
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38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE CUMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2019 (continued)

8. AAFMEEEEBR
KREREERE »

(a) BZE2019F12ANHIEARD
AINEEBER®)

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ihg=d AR¥T AREF T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Borrowings Ep=d 546,590 743,743
Current liabilities FEBEE
Borrowings BE 536,065 230,542
Derivative financial instruments PTEERTA 1,172 455
Accruals and other payables st BB R EAMENR 2,665 3,578
539,902 234,575
Total liabilities FG=Ri 1,086,492 978,318
Total equity and liabilities BEZNREE 1,669,185 1,540,203

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and was signed on its
behalf.

YANG YIRONG
A
Chairman

E
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Executive Director
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38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTOF 38. A AR EERE X

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) &ﬁﬁ@iﬂ(%)
(D) Other reserve movement of the Company (0) 2= E G 4 5 &
Share
options
Capital equity
Capital redemption reserve
reserve reserve BB Total
BAEE REABEHE BAFE “@at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT ARET T ARET T

At 1 January 2018, R2018F1H1H
31 December 2018 and 2018F12A31B R
31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 10,774 102,426
) ) = =)} 44
(c) Retained earnings movement of the Company (c) RAREE BAEE
RMB'000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2018 7201841 HA1H 53,097
Profit for the year FEFE 19,954
2017 final dividend 20174 2 REAR B (20,702)
2018 interim dividend 2018F 2 R HEARR B (10,146)
At 31 December 2018 7A2018%F12A31H 42,203
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H
Profit for the year FENH
2018 final dividend 2018F 2 REAR B
2019 interim dividend 2019F 2 REAR B
At 31 December 2019 72019%12H31H
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/7 Five-Year Financial Summary
S

RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTE ARETR

Revenue WA 1,536,763 1,632,779 1,571,382 2,198,217 2,422,810
Operating profit g e 221,436 301,251 236,659 416,192 367,074
Finance expenses BBER (65,930) (81,128) 5,682 (100,309) (42,254)
Share of losses of associates and &5 B F (0% 12

provision for impairment of BeRRERERRE

investment in an associate (4,026) (386) 307 966 1,638
Profit before taxation B ERIAE 151,480 219,737 242,648 316,849 326,458
Taxation Fi1E (66,296) (74,229) (58,881) (101,558) (97,418)
Profit for the year FEEFE 85,184 145,508 183,767 215,291 229,040
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE/ (R BB
Owners of the Company VN/NGIE YR 85,515 145,383 183,767 215,291 229,949
Non-controlling interests FEER S (331) 125 - - (909)

85,184 145,508 183,767 215,291 229,040

Dividends B E 21,200 28,108 29,291 37,329 45,885

Earnings per share (RMB cents)  &REF(H ARE)
Basic YN 15.8 22.4 26.8 27.78 29.67
Diluted we 15.7 223 268 27.77 29.67

FINANCIAL POSITIONS Bt # AR

As at 31 December
HZ12A31H

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETLT ARERTR

Non-current assets ERBEE 464,678 460,229 556,978 1,179,097 | il ik
Current assets FHEE 2,403,068 2,689,918 2,879,668 3,022,363 | il ik
Total assets BEBE 2,867,746 3,150,147 3,436,646 4,201,460 | il
Non-current liabilities ErBarE 549,454 280,052 514,785 823,343 637,525
Current liabilities mEERE 846,203 1,263,160 1,010,459 1,282,278 ||kt bk

Total liabilities BELH 1,395,657 1,543,212 1,525,244 2,105,621 2,388,702

Net assets BEFE 1,472,089 1,606,935 1,911,402 2,095,839 | ikl
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

Independent Non-executive Dirgctors

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Professor Xiang Ming

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Professor Xiang Ming

Remuneration Gommittee

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Professor Xiang Ming

Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Nomination Gommittee

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen
Professor Xiang Ming
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Mr. Han Huan Guang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kwok Kin FCCA, FCPA

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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Corporate Information
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLAGE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 5301, 53rd Floor
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINGIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINGIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China
ANZ

Bank of China

Bank of Communications
BNP Paribas

Citibank, N.A.

China Citic Bank

CTBC

Far Eastern International Bank
Hang Seng Bank

KBC Bank N.V.

0-Bank

Rabobank

Standard Chartered Bank
Taishin International Bank
United Overseas Bank
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sharenolder Information /7

Listing: Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 9 March 2004

Stock Code: 2341

Board Lot: 2,000

Par Value: HK$0.1

Trading Currency:  HKS$

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2020

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Register of members closed
(for ascertaining shareholders’ rights to
attend and vote at annual general meeting)
Annual general meeting
Ex-entitlement date for final dividend
Register of members closed
(for determining entitlement to final dividend)
Record date for final dividend
Despatch of dividend warrants
Interim results to be announced

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK4.8 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 payable to shareholders on the
register of members of the Company on 24 July 2020.

31 December 2019
31 March 2020
24-30 June 2020

30 June 2020
20 July 2020
22-24 July 2020

24 July 2020
on or about 28 August 2020
on or about 31 August 2020

Subject to approval of the proposed final dividend by the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on 30 June 2020, the final dividend warrants will be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company on or about 28 August 2020.

BERE ™

£ H2004F3 A9 BN EEHA
REFERARERLET
ARAD A5 - 2341
BEEE 2,000
HfE : 0.187T
RHEHE BT
L0200 F N EITERE
MRFEEFER 2019F12A31H
EEREEND 20203 A31H
HEmERNBPERFE 202066H24E30H
(LAEE AR H B R
BRBAFAE LIREZREF)
BRBFRE 202046 A30H
REARR SRR 1E B 202047 H20H
FEEMRERDBEERFE 202067H22%24H

(AR R B B 2 HEA))

REARE B A2 8% B H 202057 A24H
FEREE 202048 A28 B 5% B A&
FRERSEE N 202058 A31 Bl H A4

i 2

EEeERREEE2019F12A318IEEEZR
Hk B F4.878 1l - FR20205F7 B24B &5
NEIRR AR ZBER -

BEEIRARKRE  BAERARAR 202056 A
30A BT EEREBEF RS FEREER -
FAAEE o REIRBEKN202068A28R LA
FETAREBRE -
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Shargholder Information
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CLOSING OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 24 June 2020 to Tuesday, 30 June 2020, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for attendance of annual general meeting, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited no later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 23 June 2020.

The register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Wednesday, 22 July 2020 to Friday, 24 July 2020, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares will be effected. To rank for the
proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 July 2020.

SHAREHOLDER SERVIGES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333

Facsimile: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong promptly of any
change of addresses.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

EcoGreen International Group Limited
Suite 5301, 53rd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2530 0609
Facsimile (852) 2530 0619
Email ir-contact@ecogreen.com
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